
 
 

 

 
Meeting of:   

 
Integrated Commissioning Board 

Date: Tuesday, 27th October, 2020 
Time: 3.30 pm. 
Venue: Zoom / YouTube 

 
This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by 
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. 

Item 
No. 

AGENDA Page No 

1   Apologies   

 To receive any apologies for absence.  

2   Minutes  5 - 9 

 To consider the minutes of the meeting of the Integrated 

Commissioning Board meeting held on 29 September 2020. 

 

3   Declarations of Interest   

 Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 

or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 

those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 

of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

 

4   Items for Exclusion of Public and Press   

 To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 

be excluded from the meeting. 

 

5   Urgent Items of Business   

 To determine whether there are any additional items of business 

which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 

be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

 

 

Public Document Pack



6   Terms of Reference Review  10 - 28 

 To receive the attached report from the Cabinet Member for Corporate 

Delivery / Director of Resources 

 

7   Finance, Performance and Risk Sub Group   

 To receive a verbel update on the work of the Finance, Performance & 

Risk Sub Group from the Chief Finance Officer for Health & Social 

Care Integration 

 

8   Presentation - Pennine Acute Transactions  29 - 42 

 To receive a presentation on behalf of the Assistant Director of 

Commissioning 

 

9   Better Care Fund Budget Monitoring Quarter 2 2020/21  43 - 50 

 To receive the attached report from the Cabinet Member for Corporate 

Delivery / Chief Finance Officer – Health & Social Care Integration 

 

10   Health and Social Care Pooled Budget Monitoring  Report 

September 2020  

51 - 63 

 To receive the attached report from the Cabinet Member for Corporate 

Delivery / Chief Finance Officer – Health & Social Care Integration 

 

11   Health Commissioning Intentions  64 - 88 

 To receive the attached report from the Cabinet Member for Social 

Care / Director of Commissioning 

 

12   Exclusion of Press and Public   

 To consider that the press and public be excluded from the remaining 

part of the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local 

Government Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the 

likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the provisions of 

Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public 

interest would not be served in publishing the information.  

 



 
 

13   Public Health Commissioning Intentions 2021/22  89 - 95 

 To consider the attached report of the Cabinet Member for Healthy 

Lives / Director of Commissioning 

 

14   Contract Intentions for Health and Children's social care  96 - 110 

 To consider the attached report from the Cabinet Member for Healthy 

Lives / Director of Commissioning 

 

15   Commissioning Intentions for Health and Children's social care  111 - 144 

 To consider the attached report from the Cabinet Member for Healthy 

Lives / Director of Commissioning 

 

16   Adult Care Commissioning Plan 2021/22  145 - 157 

 To consider the attached report from the Cabinet Member for Social 

Care and Healthy Lives / Director of Commissioning  

 

17   Adult Social Care Fees 2021/22 – Options for Consultation  158 - 161 

 To consider the attached report of the Cabinet Member for Social Care 

and Ageing Well / Director of Commissioning. 

 

18   Financial Assessment (DLA) Review  162 - 168 

 To consider the attached report from the Cabinet Member for Social 

Care and Ageing Well / Director of Commissioning.  

 

19   The Learning Disability & Autism Plan  169 - 172 

 To consider the attached repotr from the Cabinet Member for Social 

Care and Ageing Well / Director of Commissioning 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Integrated Commissioning Board Members 
Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed Dr Bodrul Alam 
Councillor Daalat Ali Councillor Allen Brett 
Graham Burgess Denise Dawson 
Dr Chris Duffy Councillor Kieran Heakin 
Joanne Newton  
 

For more information about this meeting, please contact  
Alison James 
01706 924829 
alison.james@rochdale.gov.uk 



INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING BOARD 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
Tuesday, 29 September 2020 

 
PRESENT: G. Burgess (Independent Chair); Rochdale Borough Council - 
Councillors I Ahmed, Brett, Heakin and Rowbotham; HMRCCG – Dr Bodrul, 
D. Dawson, Dr C. Duffy, J. Newton. 
 
OFFICERS: S. Rumbelow (Chief Executive / Accountable Officer), S. McIvor 
(Director of Commissioning), G. Hopper (Director of Children’s Services), N. 
Thornton (Director of Resources), J. Murphy (Chief Finance Officer), S. Evans  
(Chief Finance Officer – Health & Social Care Integration), T. Harrison 
(Assistant Director – Commissioning), N. Baig (Assistant Director – 
Commissioning), S. Croasdale (Director of Integrated Systems Development), 
K. Hurley (Director of Operations and Executive Nurse), M. Garraway 
(Committees & Constitutional Services Manager).  
 

34 MINUTES 
Resolved 
That the minutes of the meeting of the Integrated Commissioning Board held 
on 25 August 2020 be approved as a correct record. 
 

35 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
There were no declarations of interest in relation to the items for 
consideration. 
 

36 PHASE 3 NHS RESPONSE (PART 1) 
Consideration was given to a report of the Assistant Director – Commissioning 
setting out changes in ways of working across health and social care in order 
to meet the needs of the population, in the context of the third Phase of NHS 
response to COVID 19 in the following areas 

 the initial process adopted in Rochdale to support system readiness 

 the second submission to Greater Manchester 

 the other returns required as part of this process 

 next steps for the Rochdale system 
 
Resolved 
That the report be noted. 
 

37 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
Resolved 
That the Press and Public be excluded from the meeting during consideration 
of the following thee items of business, in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended. 
  
Reason for resolution 
Should the press and public remain during the debate on these three items 
there may be a disclosure of information that is deemed to be exempt under 
Parts 1 and 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



 
38 PHASE 3 NHS RESPONSE (PART 2) 

Consideration was given to a report of the Assistant Director – Commissioning 
setting out changes in ways of working across health and social care in order 
to meet the needs of the population, in the context of the third Phase of NHS 
response to COVID 19. 
 
The Integrated Commissioning Board were informed that Work will continue 
on the data based submissions following feedback from Greater Manchester 
and the North West Region. It is anticipated that there will be further challenge 
across all areas to maximise restoration of activity. 
 
Resolved 
That the report be noted. 
 

39 UPDATE ON ACUTE HOSPITAL SITE RECONFIGURATION 
Consideration was given to a report of the Assistant Director – 
Commissioning, updating the Integrated Commissioning Board on the views 
of Rochdale Commissioners in relation to the received business cases for the 
hospital sites reconfiguration. 
 
The Integrated Commissioning Board were advised that Rochdale 
Commissioners would continue to work in partnership with the Northern Care 
Alliance and Local Care Organisation provider to support delivery of the best 
possible services for the population of Rochdale. The potential for changes 
across hospital sites required care planning and consideration and it should 
be noted that in some areas formal consultation may be required.  
 
Resolved 
That the report be noted. 
 

40 PREVENTATIVE MENTAL HEALTH AND WELLBEING SERVICE: 
CONTRACTING OPTIONS FROM 1 APRIL 2021 
Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Commissioning seeking 
approval of amendments to the contracting of preventative mental health and 
wellbeing services; and, approval of commencing new arrangements from 1 
April 2021. 
 
Alternatives considered 
The existing contract ends on 31 March 2021. To do nothing would leave the 
residents of HMR with no access to these prevention level mental health 
services. 
 
Resolved 
That the arrangements for this service from an NHS national contract to an 
NHS grant funded service using the current specification with a view to 
commencing the new arrangement from the 1st April 2021. The 
commissioning intention is to issue two 12 month grant agreements to be 
confirmed to Rochdale & District MIND in writing to provide a level of 
assurance and stability to the provider. 

Page 6



 
Reason for resolution 
The council and CCG have conducted a review of prevention services and 
mental health prevention services to ensure a whole system approach. The 
review of the current provision was very positive with all 6 services within the 
contract performing above expectations.  The recommendation seeks to build 
on these successes to provide continuity for local residents who benefit from 
the Mental Health and Wellbeing Service. 
 

41 EATING DISORDERS (ADULTS) 
Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Commissioning seeking 
approval contractual agreement to establish an Eating Disorder Service for 
adults based on a detailed business case; changing from a spot purchase 
arrangement to a contract with Greater Manchester Mental Health Foundation 
Trust to provide an adult community Eating Disorder Service. 
 
Alternatives considered 
The report set out four options for consideration in commissioning provision 
for the service, along with a fifth option to continue with the current 
arrangements. 
 
Resolved 
1) That approval be given to the establish a block contract with Greater 

Manchester Mental Health Foundation Trust to provide an Adults Eating 
Disorder Service for assessment, treatment and medical management for 
all adult HMR patients requiring two clinically approved programmes  

a. First Episode Rapid Early Intervention for Eating Disorders  
b. Severe and Enduring Eating Disorders. 

2) The annual contract value to be the current spend plus spot purchased 
treatment plus £88,000. 

 
Reason for resolution 
To provide a more effective and efficient approach to meeting the needs of 
adult patients with eating disorders. 
 

42 DEMENTIA: POST DIAGNOSIS SUPPORT SERVICE (ALZHEIMER’S 
SOCIETY) 
Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Commissioning seeking 
approval of the continuation of the Post Diagnostic Dementia service provided 
by the Alzheimer’s Society and extend the current NHS grant funded 
arrangements for a further 2 years from the 1st April 2021 to the 31st March 
2023. 
 
Alternatives Considered 
To not provide the service would leave the residents of HMR with no access 
to dementia post diagnostic support services.  Extending beyond March 2023 
would incur additional costs. 
 
 
 

Page 7



Resolved 
That approval be given to extend the current Grant funded arrangements for a 
further two years from the 1 April 2021 to the 31 March 2023 at the value 
detailed within the submitted report. 
 
Reason for Resolution 
The service supports the CCG and RBC to deliver its priorities for dementia in 
line with the GM project Dementia United and priorities identified locally by the 
local Dementia Partnership steering group. 
 

43 RECOMMISSIONING OF ADULT CARE PREVENTION CONTRACTS 
Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Commissioning seeking 
approval to redesign the Adult Care prevention contracts.  There were thirteen 
contracts delivered by seven providers with a total annual value of £1.6million.  
The recommendation sought to provide a more targeted response from those 
contracts and achieve significant savings. 
 
Alternatives considered 
To do nothing and let the contracts expire without replacement would put a 
large number of vulnerable people at risk of tenancy breakdown and could 
lead to significant additional pressures on the health and care system as a 
whole. 
 
Resolved 
1. That approval be given to the new delivery model for Adult Social Care 

Prevention Services as below: 

 Cease eleven contracts and replace with one Life Skills Support 
contract as detailed within the submitted report. 

 To retain the ‘Bond Board’ and the Young Parents Services which 
would be recommissioned on a similar basis as the present 
arrangements. 
 

2. That a mitigation fund is approved to ensure that a smooth transition to the 
new arrangements are managed. This will be invested as follows: 

 A transition period to enable current service users to access new long 
terms tenancies and funding to support the delivery of the 
Accommodation with Support strategy 

 Integrated Neighbourhood budgets to provide anticipated low level but 
ongoing support packages for those moving to mainstream tenancy 
rather than supported living or other residential type support 
arrangements. 

 
Reason for resolution 
The Prevention contracts aimed to support people to move on from temporary 
to mainstream, permanent accommodation. However, in some instances, 
throughput has been limited with some people being supported in temporary 
arrangements on a long-term basis. 
 
 

Page 8



44 COMMISSIONING INTENTIONS- THE PROVISION OF HEALTHWATCH 
AND ADVOCACY SERVICES-OPTIONS APPRAISAL 
Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Commissioning setting 
out the context and overview of the Healthwatch and Advocacy services and 
opportunities and commissioning options with existing concessions both 
expire on the 31 March 2021. 
 
Alternatives considered 
The submitted report set out three alternative approaches for the 
commissioning of the service. 
 
Resolved 
1. That the advocacy service contract be retendered to align with the North 

East Sector. 
2. That the Healthwatch contract utilise the two year extension opportunity 

within the existing contract. 
 
Reason for resolution 
To allow for fair market testing of the advocacy service and provide continuity 
of service provision within the Healthwatch service. 
 

Page 9



 

Integrated Commissioning Board 

 

 

 Date of Meeting 27 October 2020 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for Healthy Lives 
Report Author Michael Garraway 
Public/Private Document Public 

 

 

Review of the Terms of Reference 
 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1. Following changes by the Leader to the Council’s Executive Portfolio’s, 

amendments are required to the Terms of Reference for the Integrated 
Commissioning Board. 
 
The Terms of Reference were adopted at the meeting of the Integrated 
Commissioning Board held on 27 August 2019 and provides Members of the 
Board an opportunity to review the effectiveness of those terms in light of 
recent challenges. 
 
The Finance, Performance & Risk Sub Group have reviewed the agreed 
Terms of Reference in light of a review its own performance. 

 

Recommendation 

 
2. 
 
 
2.1 

To approve the revised Terms of Reference for the Integrated 
Commissioning Board as attached at appendix 1. 
 
To approve the Terms of Reference of the Finance, Performance & Risk 
Sub Group as attached at appendix 2. 

 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. To reflect changes to Cabinet Portfolio’s and operational decision making of 

both organisations.     
 
 

 

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



Key Points for Consideration 

 
4.  

 
4.1 

The Integrated Commissioning Board was established by NHS 
Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group and 
Rochdale Borough Council pursuant to the NHS Bodies and Local 
Authorities Partnership Regulations 2000 as amended, and derives its 
authority and decision-making powers from these two organisations. 
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
No alternatives were considered. 
 

 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. There are no financial implications in amending the terms of reference for 

either the Integrated Commissioning Board or the Finance, Performance & 
Risk Sub Group. 

 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
Failure to maintain the Terms of Reference to reflect changes within the 

decision making structure of either organisation could result in legal   

challenge to the decisions made by the Integrated Commissioning Board. 

 

Consultation 

 
7. Consultation has been undertaken with key stakeholders and those 

effected by any amendments to the terms of reference. 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8. There are no backgrounds 
papers  

 

 

For Further Information Contact: Michael Garraway; 
Michael.garraway2@rochdale.gov.uk 
 

 

6. 
 

Page 11



 

1 
 

INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING BOARD TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 
The Integrated Commissioning Board was established by NHS Heywood, Middleton and 
Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group (HMR CCG) and Rochdale Borough Council 
(RBC) pursuant to the the NHS Bodies and Local Authorities Partnership Regulations 
2000 as amended, and derives its authority and decision-making powers from these two 
organisations.   
 
The Integrated Commissioning Board was established as a joint committee under the 
NHS Bodies and Local Authorities Partnership Arrangements Regulations 2000 (as 
amended) whereby prescribed NHS bodies and local authorities may form a joint 
committee to take responsibility for the management of partnership arrangements 
established in accordance with that Order.  
 
The Local Authorities (Executive and Alternative Arrangements) (Modification of 
Enactments and Other Provisions) (England) Order 2001 provide that where a local 
authority operates executive arrangements, the terms “executive” and “executive 
arrangements” have the same meaning as in Part II of the Local Government Act 2000.”   

 
1. Purpose 

 

1. To commission high quality all age health, social care and related services for the 

people of the Borough of Rochdale in order to meet assessed population, 

community and individual need, within the financial resources over which the Board 

has control.  

 

2. To agree the Health, Social care and Well-being commissioning strategies and 

commissioning outcomes for Rochdale Borough Council (RBC) and NHS 

Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale Clinical Commissioning Group (HMRCCG) in 

accordance with the agreed delegations from RBC and HMRCCG. 

  

3. To manage all the pooled budgets established under section 75 of the National 

Health Service Act 2006.  

 

4. To agree the allocation of resources for the delivery of the integrated 

commissioning strategies through the use of pooled or aligned budgets from 

HMRCCG and RBC. This will ensure that the wellbeing, social care and health-

related functions of RBC and the prescribed functions of HMR CCG in 

commissioning health-related services are undertaken.  

 

5. To approve the associated strategic plans and work programmes prepared by the 

integrated commissioning programme leads  

 

6. To approve integrated workforce development strategies and plans and associated 

resource allocations. 

 

 

 

Page 12



 

2 
 

2. Accountable to 

The Integrated Commissioning Board will update the Strategic Place Board on the 
achievement of outcomes for commissioned services in meeting the agreed objectives 
and report any concerns that cannot be resolved within the Integrated Commissioning 
Board to RBC and HMRCCG. 
 
The Integrated Commissioning Board will update RBC and HMRCCG on the 
performance of the commissioning strategy, its implementation and on the effective 
use of resources by exception. 
 
Members of the Integrated Commissioning Board who have the delegated 
accountability on behalf of RBC and HMRCCG to manage the functions of the Board 
shall be responsible for reporting to their respective bodies any concerns with regard 
to the functioning of the Board and the capacity of the Board in fulfilling their 
constitutional or statutory functions. 
 
Executive Decisions made by the Integrated Commissioning Board shall be subject to 
the Council’s overview and scrutiny arrangements, including the eligibility of decisions 
for call-in and review, and the requirement to attend overview and scrutiny meetings. 

 
To ensure accountability and assurance the Strategic Place Board will be responsible 
for the creation of sub groups/committees under its remit, including their terms of 
reference and the Membership of sub groups/committees. 

 
3. Accountable for 

 
The Integrated Commissioning Board shall establish such operational sub-groups as 
it considers necessary to ensure the delivery of commissioning outcomes.  Such sub-
groups shall be kept under review to ensure their relevance going forward. 
 
At present these are: 
 

 Quality and Safeguarding Group 

 Finance, Performance and Risk Sub Group 
 

4. Operating Principles 

 
The Integrated Commissioning Board will have the following operating principles:  

 
1. Assure the Strategic Place Board on the delivery of commissioning for outcomes 

identified in the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) and specifically those 
identified as priority outcomes. 
 

2. Oversee the development and establishment of integrated commissioning 
arrangements in the Borough, ensuring that the requirements of both HMRCCG 
and RBC are met, that they are based on best practice, and strategic alignment to 
the intent of the Greater Manchester Devolution Agreement, and specifically that 
the Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership, is maintained. 
 

Page 13



 

3 
 

3. Govern the arrangements for all age integrated commissioning providing 
assurance to HMRCCG and RBC so that their statutory responsibilities are being 
met, their strategic objectives are being addressed and that their combined 
resources are being used to best effect. 
 

4. Govern the arrangements with strong clinical assurance and democratic 
accountability. 

 
5. Be accountable for the achievement of the agreed commissioning strategies and 

plans on behalf of HMRCCG and RBC. 
 
6. Ensure that the integrated commissioning strategies describe how the outcomes 

and objectives set out in the s75 Agreements and aligned budget arrangements 
and the high-level strategic goals and outcomes of HMR CCG and RBC are to be 
achieved. 
 

7. Be accountable for the commissioning of a Local Care Organisation (LCO) and for 
the assurance of the effectiveness of the LCO to meet the health, care and 
wellbeing outcomes/objectives for the borough of Rochdale.  

 
8. Commit the resources within the pooled fund to achieve the objectives of the 

integrated commissioning strategies, within the level of delegated resources 
assigned to it. 

 
9. Be responsible for developing a joint financial plan to underpin the overall 

commissioning strategy and providing direction in relation to investments and 
savings to be made by both partners. 

 
10. Undertake an annual work-plan within the agreed budget to implement the 

integrated commissioning strategies.  The work-plan will include the priorities for 
each operational commissioning programme for that year.   

 
11. Set the standards for, and monitor and review the outcomes and performance of 

all age commissioned services in line with the integrated commissioning strategy 
and work-plan, identifying areas for improvement and areas of good practice, 
taking action where any outcomes and performance fall short of requirements 
 

12. Ensure the engagement of stakeholder groups, including service users, patients, 
carers, providers and community organisations, in the commissioning cycle 
including where appropriate the co-design of commissioned services, the 
formulation of the integrated commissioning strategy and the annual work-plan. 

 
13. Hold the Integrated Commissioning Directorate and the individual commissioning 

teams of the Partners to account for the performance and delivery of 
commissioning programmes as required by the agreed commissioning 
plan/strategy, the annual work-plan, and the s75 Agreements. 

 
14. Identify, record, mitigate and manage all risks associated with integrated 

commissioning, including the maintenance of a risk register which shall be 
included on the corporate risk registers of both HMRCCG and RBC. 

Page 14



 

4 
 

 
15. Review regular performance and financial monitoring reports and ensure, if 

required, appropriate actions are taken to ensure annual delivery of expected 
performance targets and approved schemes within permitted budget for the 
financial year.   

 
5. Decision Making 

 

The Integrated Commissioning Board is the commissioning body for the services in 

scope of integrated commissioning. The Integrated Commissioning Board has 

delegated executive responsibility and may exercise executive decision making for 

these services.  

 

The Integrated Commissioning Board can, on behalf of the CCG and the Council:  

 

 Commit resources within agreed budgets, 

 Decide policy within the scope of services/achievement of strategic aims, 

 Commission research or reviews to inform decision making, 

 Oversee integrated commissioning action plans.  

 

The Integrated Commissioning Board will provide a quarterly update to the Strategic 

Place Board providing information on its work. 

 
6. Code of conduct and member responsibilities 

All Members of the Integrated Commissioning Board are required to comply with the 
requirements of the Codes and Protocols of their respective organisations.  
 
With regard to the business being conducted at meetings of the Board, Members of 
Rochdale Council shall have regard to the Council’s Code of Conduct for Councillors 
and Voting Co-opted Members at Part 5A to the RBC Constitution and shall declare 
such interests are required under that Code and shall, where required, withdraw from 
the meeting.  
 
With regard to the business being conducted at meetings of the Board, Members of 
HMRCCG shall have regard to Part 8 “Standards of Business Conduct and Managing 
Conflicts of Interest” of the HMR CCG Constitution and shall declare such interests as 
are required under that Part and shall, where required, withdraw from the meeting. 
 
In addition, all Members of the Integrated Commissioning Board will commit to the 
following roles, responsibilities and expectations: 
 

 They make every effort to attend meetings. Substitutes can be sent. 

Failure to attend three consecutive meetings will lead to a review of 

their membership.   

 Members endorse the collaborative model and work to ensure its 

achievement. 

Page 15



 

5 
 

 They are prepared for the meetings, and have read papers circulated 

in advance.  

 They will represent the views of the group, organisation, and / or 

partnership that they speak for and they will ensure that Strategic 

Partnership Board business is reported back to that group, organisation 

/ partnership as required.  

 They will be able and willing to make decisions on behalf of the body/ 

organisation/partnership that they speak for; this must also apply when 

substitutes are sent. 

 They will take forward any actions that they have agreed to develop, 

and then report back any progress to the group in the timescales 

agreed.  

 Members will adhere to the seven principles of public life. 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-

public-life 

 
7. Membership and Membership operation 

 
The voting membership of the Integrated Commissioning Board shall comprise an 
Independent Chair (see section 10) and membership drawn from the HMRCCG and 
RBC. 
 
RBC  
 

 Leader of the Council 

 Cabinet member with responsibility for Adult Services  

 Cabinet member with responsibility for Children’s Services  

 Cabinet member with responsibility for Health and Wellbeing  
 

HMRCCG  
 

 Two lay members  

 Clinical Chair  

 Clinical lead 
 

 A Healthwatch Rochdale as a non-voting Member. 
 

Substitutes 
 
Substitutes from each of the partner organisations will be permitted, however, 
membership should be reviewed if a named Board member not attend for 3 
consecutive meetings. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 16

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-7-principles-of-public-life


 

6 
 

Attending Integrated Commissioning Board advisors 
 
The voting membership shall be supported by the following attending Advisors –  
 

 RBC Chief Executive/HMR CCG Accountable Officer 

 The Joint Director for Integrated Commissioning 
 
HMRCCG 
 

 Director of Operations / Executive Nurse 

 Chair of the Clinical and Professional Advisory Panel 

 Chief Finance Officer – Health & Social Care  

 Programme Director Strategic Commissioning   
 
RBC 
 

 Director of Children’s Services 

 Director of Public Health and Wellbeing 

 Chief Finance Officer 

 Director of Resources 

 Assistant Director Legal, Governance and Workforce 
 
Any further persons, including further Officers of HMRCCG and RBC, as the Board 
consider appropriate 

 
8. Quorum 

 
The quorum shall be any six voting members preferably with three from HMR CCG 
and three from Rochdale Borough Council.  
 
Where a meeting is inquorate those Members in attendance may meet informally but 
any decisions shall require appropriate ratification at the next quorate meeting of the 
Integrated Commissioning Board in order for decisions to be legal/legally binding. 
 

9. Chair 

An Independent Chair of the Board will be appointed and will serve no more than 4 
years without being reappointed. The process of appointment/reappointment/removal 
of the Chair will be co-ordinated by RBC Governance Services, via a report from the 
Accountable Officer to the CCG Governing Body and Council. 

 
The Independent Chair shall comply with the Constitutional requirements of both RBC 
and HMRCCG and shall declare such interests as are required of either or both 
partner’s process and shall, where required, withdraw from the meeting 
 
The Chair will ensure:  
 

 Meetings are conducted in a fair and transparent business-like fashion.  

 Decisions are clear and organisations are accountable.  

Page 17



 

7 
 

 Any actions required have a clearly identified lead person to take forward the 

action, and timescale.  

 That a shared culture and language, common purpose and trust are endorsed 

through a collaborative leadership style.  

 The Independent Chair shall vote only to determine a matter in the event of an 

equality of votes. 

 If the Vice-Chair is acting in the capacity of the Chair, they may vote once as a 

voting Member of the Board and in the event of a split vote may use the Chairs 

casting vote. 

If the Chair or Vice-Chair are not in attendance then a Chair will be appointed from the 
floor of those voting Members present. 

 
10. Vice-Chair 

 
The Vice-Chair will be appointed on an annual basis at the first meeting of the 
municipal year and will be elected from the Integrated Commissioning Board voting 
Membership. 
 
A Vice Chair of the Board shall be appointed on a rotating annual basis between a 
HMRCCG member and an RBC member to Chair meetings of the Board in the 
absence of the Chair.  The Vice-Chair, when acting as the Chair will for fill all the roles 
of the Chair.  
 

11. Voting 

 

Decision making will be taken were possible on a collaborative basis, but each 
Member of the Board will have one vote. The Chair at their discretion can chose to 
withhold their vote, but in the event of a split decision will have the casting vote. 
 

12. Dispute Resolution 

 

It is recognised that as the Integrated Commissioning Board desire is to reach 

agreement on any matter by consensus, however if a dispute arises the Chair may 

refer to the Strategic Place Board for advice.  

 

13. Scrutiny 

 

Executive Decisions of the Integrated Commissioning Board will be subject to formal 

scrutiny via the Call-in process, normally undertaken by the Health, Schools and Care 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee, on behalf of the Council.  

 

14. Conflict of Interests 

 

The Integrated Commissioning Board will be bound by the Standing Orders/Standing 

Financial instructions and Codes of Conduct of both parent bodies. Declaration of 

interest will need to be made annually and at each meeting of the Board in line with 

Page 18



 

8 
 

the agenda. Depending on the topic under discussion and the nature of the conflict of 

interest appropriate action will be taken and recorded in the minutes. 

 
15. Meetings of the Integrated Commissioning Board 

 
Formal meetings of the Integrated Commissioning Board will be held in public and 
shall be held on a monthly basis.  If the business to be considered involves confidential 
or exempt business, the Integrated Commissioning Board can resolve to exclude the 
public during consideration of that business. Meetings were possible will be held on 
Tuesdays of the relevant month at 3:30pm. 
 
Once a quarter the Committee will hold a development session instead of a Board 
meeting, with the Chair reserving the right to hold a short Committee meeting prior to 
a development session if it is required. 
 

16. Meeting Procedure Rules 

 

Formal meetings shall be convened and conducted in accordance with the provisions 

of the Procedure Rules at Part 4 of the RBC Constitution, particularly the Procedure 

Rules that provide the statutory basis for the conduct of meetings and business, and 

with the Standing Orders at Appendix C to the HMRCCG Constitution. 

 

Where the statutory or procedural requirements for the conduct of meetings differ 

between partners, the option which addresses the statutory position of each partner, 

or which accords greater public access, shall apply. 

 

The following provisions shall apply to the formal meetings of the Integrated 

Commissioning Board 

 

 Agenda and reports will be published on the appropriate websites, and made 

available at least five clear working days prior to the day of a meeting.  

 Papers and meetings will be open to the public except in circumstances where 

confidential and/or exempt matters are likely to be considered. 

 Confidential information means information provided by a Government 

Department on terms which forbid its public disclosure or information which 

cannot be publicly disclosed by Court Order. 

 Exempt information means; 

 

(i)  Information relating to any individual 

(ii)  Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual 

(iii) Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 

particular person (including the authority holding that information) 

(iv) Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or 

contemplated consultations or negotiations, in connection with any 

labour relations matter arising between the authority or a Minister of 

the Crown and employees of, or officer-holders under, the authority 

(v) Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege 

Page 19



 

9 
 

could be maintained in legal proceedings 

(vi) Information which, if disclosed to the public, would reveal that the 

authority proposes to give under any enactment a notice under or by 

virtue of which requirements are imposed on a person; or to make an 

order or direction under any enactment 

(vii) Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection 

with the prevention, investigation or prosecution of crime. 

 

Information is exempt if and so long, as in all the circumstances of the case, the public 

interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 

information. In all cases, before the public is excluded the meeting must be satisfied 

that, in all circumstances, the public interest in maintaining the exemption outweighs 

the public interest in disclosing the information. 

 

 28 days public notice of when Key Decisions, as defined at Part 4B of the RBC 

Constitution, are to be taken shall be given. In the event of less than 28 days 

notice being provided, the General Exception or Special Urgency provisions of 

Part 4B of the RBC Constitution shall apply. 

 28 days public notice of the proposed consideration of business in private shall 

be given. In the event of less than 28 days notice being provided provisions to 

permit consideration on grounds of urgency as provided for in Part 4B of the 

Council’s constitution shall apply. 

 Executive Decisions taken by the Integrated Commissioning Board shall be 

subject to the Council’s overview and scrutiny arrangements, including the 

eligibility of decisions for call-in and review, and the requirement to attend 

overview and scrutiny meetings 

 

17. Integrated Commissioning Board Agendas and work programme 

 
There will be standing items on each agenda these are:  
 

 Declarations of Interest  

 Minutes of the Previous Meeting  

 Performance – bi monthly 

 Savings Programme 

 Better Care Fund Quarter updates 

 

18. Co-ordination and Servicing of meetings 

 

The Integrated Commissioning Board will be co-ordinated and serviced by a Senior 
Member of Governance Services from Rochdale Borough Council, and will:  
 

 Produce a schedule of meetings for the year and publish it.  

 Administer, maintain and publish the Integrated Commissioning Board work 

plan/forward plan of the Board. 

 Publish notice of Key Decision and private meetings. 

Page 20



 

10 
 

 Arrange suitable venues for meetings (Normally Number one Riverside 

Rochdale).  

 Prepare the agenda, collate reports and produce minutes of each Board 

meeting.  

 Undertake any executive / follow up action arising from meetings. 

 Offer the Chair/ Integrated Commissioning Board and Chief Officers 

constitutional, procedural and general governance advice as and when 

required. 

 
19. Variation 

 

RBC and HMRCCG may agree from time to time to modify, extend or restrict the remit 

of the Board. The Terms of Reference will be reviewed annually or sooner at the 

request of the Chair. 

 

20. Confidentiality 

 
All documents will be shared and made public unless there is a specific legal or 
confidential reason not to do so.  In such cases Members will respect confidentiality in 
relation to any sensitive information shared in support of the business agenda. 
 

21. Governance and Accountability 

 
The Integrated Commissioning Board is a subcommittee of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board (now Strategic Place Board) and will be a constituted Committee of the Council 
under section 102 of the Local Government Act 1972. However the Local Authority 
(Public Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013 
will apply to Integrated Commissioning Board.  
 
The regulations relating to Health and Wellbeing Boards make provision for the dis-
application and modification of certain enactments relating to local authority 
committees appointed under section 102 of the Local Government Act 1972, insofar 
as they are applicable to a Health and Wellbeing Board established under section 194 
of the Health and Social Care Act 2012.  
 
The regulations mean that Health and Wellbeing Boards are free to establish 
subcommittees and delegate functions to them, non-elected members of a health and 
wellbeing board can vote alongside nominated elected representatives and political 
proportionality requirements are left to local determination. 
 

 

Page 21



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Integrated Commissioning Board 

Finance, Performance & Risk Sub Group  

Terms of Reference 

October 2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 22



 

Meeting: Finance, Performance & Risk Sub 
Group 

Approval date: 14/10/2020 Version number: 4 

Status: FINAL Ratified by: Integrated Commissioning 
Board 

Page 2 

 
 

 
 
 
VERSION CONTROL 
 

VERSION ISSUED TO DATE COMMENTS 

V1 Finance, Performance 
& Risk Sub Group 

20 July 2018 Amendments reflected in 
V2. 

V2 Finance, Performance 
& Risk Sub Group 

13 September 
2018 

Approved 

V2 Integrated 
Commissioning Board  

30 October 2018 Ratified 

V2.1 Finance, Performance 
& Risk Sub Group 

20 June 2019 Amendments to the 
membership - APPROVED 

V3 Integrated 
Commissioning Board 

July 2019 For ratification 

V3.1 Finance, Performance 
& Risk Sub Group 

14 October 2020 Minor amendments to 
remove references to GM 
transformation fund 

V4 Integrated 
Commissioning Board 

27 October 2020 For Ratification 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23



 

Meeting: Finance, Performance & Risk Sub 
Group 

Approval date: 14/10/2020 Version number: 4 

Status: FINAL Ratified by: Integrated Commissioning 
Board 

Page 3 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The Finance, Performance & Risk Sub Group (the Sub Group) is established in accordance with 
Rochdale Borough Council’s and Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale Clinical Commissioning 
Group’s (NHS HMR CCG) constitution, standing orders and schemes of delegation. 
 
These terms of reference set out the membership, remit responsibilities and reporting 
arrangements of the Sub Group and shall have effect as if incorporated into the constitution and 
standing orders.  

 

 
Under delegated authority from the Cabinet and Governing Body, the Sub Group will report and 
provide assurance with reference to the pooled budgets overall financial position, activity, 
performance and risk. The Sub Group will support the identification of organisational risks and 
agreement of mitigating actions. 
 
The Sub Group will conduct its business in accordance with national guidance and the Nolan 
principles of public life.  The Sub Group will review its own performance, membership and terms 
of reference.  Any resulting changes to the terms of reference should be approved and ratified by 
the Integrated Commissioning Board. 

 

 
FINANCE 
The Chief Finance Officer (H&SC Integration) will prepare and submit budgets for approval to the 
Sub Group which are in accordance with the aims and objectives of the Locality Plan.   
 
The Sub Group will review the budgets submitted and make a recommendation regarding their 
adoption to the Integrated Commissioning Board. 
 
The Sub Group will:-   

 

 Be the primary group providing assurance and challenge on the operation and 
deliverability of the pooled fund for health and social care. 
 

 Review and advise on the medium term financial strategy and savings plans every year 
to ensure this is aligned with the overall strategic objectives of the organisations. 

 

 Review and appraise reports detailing progress against financial and operational 
milestones for delivery of savings schemes and to ensure corrective actions are taken to 
manage and mitigate the impact of any delays. 

1. Introduction  

2. Purpose of the Sub Group 

3. Objectives of the Sub Group  

Page 24



 

Meeting: Finance, Performance & Risk Sub 
Group 

Approval date: 14/10/2020 Version number: 4 

Status: FINAL Ratified by: Integrated Commissioning 
Board 

Page 4 

 
 

 Recommend and review appropriate courses of action to address in-year areas of under 
or over spend. 

 

 Receive information on statutory returns submitted to NHSE, Greater Manchester Health 
& Social Care Partnership and Department of Health; 

 

 Review any budgetary and savings programme implications on safety and quality, 
referring any issues to the Quality and Safeguarding Committee and/or Clinical and 
Professional Advisory Panel. 
 

 Receive reports, to assess any risks to the pool budget financial position. 
 

PERFORMANCE: 
The Sub Group will: 

 

 Review the CCG and LA performance with reference to statutory performance indicators, 
and specific performance measures.  
  

 Review monitoring reports in relation to the quality and performance of all commissioned 
providers, and advice on the instigation of performance intervention.  This Sub Group will 
only receive reports on the performance metrics that are failing or have an adverse 
movement 

 

 Identify and refer any quality issues to the Quality and Safeguarding Committee, the 
Clinical and Professional Advisory Panel, and/or the Patient and Public Engagement 
Committee with particular reference to poor quality of patient experience and /or clinical 
quality or safety of commissioned services 

 

 Request reports on any adverse variance in performance from CCG and LA 
management, providers or sub-committee  chairs  

 
RISK: 
The Sub Group will: 
 

 Support the identification of key organisational risks across Health and Social Care by 
reviewing finance, quality and delivery (performance) of commissioned services, 
transformation and savings programme. 
 

 Support the identification of key organisational risks in respect of delivery of CCG and LA 
statutory duties. 
 

 Ensure all identified risk areas have associated robust prevention and mitigation strategies 
in place for oversight at the Integrated Commissioning Board. 

 

 
 

The Sub Group shall operate as a sub group of the Integrated Commissioning Board .The 
membership shall comprise: 

 

ROLE 

4. Membership   

Page 25



 

Meeting: Finance, Performance & Risk Sub 
Group 

Approval date: 14/10/2020 Version number: 4 

Status: FINAL Ratified by: Integrated Commissioning 
Board 

Page 5 

 
 

Chief Finance Officer – Health & Social Care Integration - Chair 

Joint Director of Integrated Commissioning – Vice Chair 

CCG Lay Member for Governance  

LA Portfolio holder for finance  

Director of Integrated Systems Development 

Chief Finance Officer - LA 

Deputy Chief Finance Officer – H&SC Integration 

CCG Accountable Officer / Chief Executive – CCG / RBC 

Clinical Chair - CCG 

 
In attendance: 

 
The Sub Group may co-opt or seek advice from other representatives/expertise as appropriate 
and deemed necessary. 

 

 
For each meeting to be deemed quorate attendance must include either the Chair or Vice 
Chair and 3 other Members.  

 

 
The frequency of meetings will be monthly 
All meetings will be scheduled in advance for the full year.   

 

 
An up to date register of members’ interest will be retained and published on the HMR CCG 
website.   
 
Members will be expected to declare any conflicts of interest at all meetings and the 
Chair will determine how any conflict will be handled in line with CCG Conflicts of 
Interest Policy.  
 

 
The Sub Group will report to the Integrated Commissioning Board, following each meeting, the 
minutes of the sub group shall be formally recorded, and a verbal report given to the subsequent 
meeting of the Integrated Commissioning Board. 

 

 
The Sub Group is an assurance and scrutiny group.  The members of the group  have 
delegated authority and budgetary responsibility for decision making within their organisations 
scheme of delegation.  Any items requiring a decision over and above will be taken through the 
Integrated Commissioning Board. 

 
 

5. Quoracy 

6. Frequency of Meetings  

7. Conflicts of Interest  

8. Accountability   

9. Scheme of Delegation 

10. Corporate Sustainability   

Page 26



 

Meeting: Finance, Performance & Risk Sub 
Group 

Approval date: 14/10/2020 Version number: 4 

Status: FINAL Ratified by: Integrated Commissioning 
Board 

Page 6 

 
 

 
As a health and social care commissioner, the organisations  are committed to planning and 
buying health and social care on a sustainable basis, this Sub Group will support the 
commitments of the Sustainable Development Management Strategy and Delivery Plan, 
wherever possible in; 
 
1.         Commissioning for Sustainability and Adaptation 
2.         Being a Sustainable Organisation 
3.         Promoting sustainability with member practices 
4.         Delivering our commitments and assessing our Performance 
 
Commissioning for sustainable development in the health and social care system means: 
 

•        Planning services which are efficient, effective and safe 
•        Buying services that provide highest quality at best value, are safe and which have 

least impact on the environment 
•        Avoiding duplication, inefficiency and waste 
•        Focus on preventative, proactive care 
•        Patients public engagement and involvement in planning and design of services 
•        Building resilience, and protecting and developing community assets and strengths 
•        Making the best use of all of the resources we have 
•        Minimising carbon emissions 

 

 

These Terms of Reference will be reviewed annually. 

 

 
Secretarial support will be provided to support the Chair in the management of the Sub Groups 
business and the collation and distribution of papers.  
 
The agenda and papers for meetings shall be distributed five working days prior to the 
meeting. 

 

 
The sub group will set an annual work programme/schedule, it will review annually the terms 
of reference and membership.  
 
Items for the agenda and all relevant supporting papers should be submitted to the CCG Hub 
for approval by the Sub Group Chair a minimum of 7 working days prior to the meeting.  
 
All  members will be expected to attend 70% of meetings within the financial year or send an 
appropriate fully briefed deputy to provide appropriate feedback and vote on their behalf where 
required.  
 

 

11. Review Date  

12. Secretarial Support   

13. Conduct of Sub Group  

14. Links to other Groups  

Page 27



 

Meeting: Finance, Performance & Risk Sub 
Group 

Approval date: 14/10/2020 Version number: 4 

Status: FINAL Ratified by: Integrated Commissioning 
Board 

Page 7 

 
 

Through its membership the group will also link with the appropriate Committees of the two 
statutory organisations. 

Page 28



 
 

 

Report to Integrated Commissioning Board 
 

 

Date of Meeting 27th October 2020     
Portfolio Public Health and Wellbeing   
Report Author Nadia Baig    
Public/Private Document Private   
    

Pennine Transaction update  

 

Executive Summary 

 
1.1 
 

 
1.2 
 
 
 
 

 
1.3 
 
 
 
 
1.4 

Rochdale Commissioners are working with providers and are sighted on the 
development of the Business case to support the Pennine Transaction. 
 
The transaction is in 2 parts  

 the Manchester Foundation Trust  acquisition of the North Manchester 
site 

 the Northern Care Alliance acquisition of the Fairfield, Rochdale and 
Oldham Hospitals 

 
The development of the Transaction business case followed after the 
confirmation of the  of the North East Sector Services strategy. This was 
developed  in collaboration with  North East Sector CCG’s and Manchester 
Health and Care Commissioning. 
 
This paper seeks to update the group on the development of plans by the 
Northern Care Alliance across the Salford, Bury, Rochdale and Oldham 
footprints. There will be a presentation at the meeting from the Northern 
Care Alliance which will outline the broad plans for development across the 
North East Sector of Greater Manchester. 

 

Recommendation 

 
2. 
 

 
ICB are asked to note the content of this report. 

 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. 
 

 
To support the maintenance of the health for benefit of the local population 
 
 

Page 29

Agenda Item 8



 
 

Key points for consideration 

 
4. 
 
 
 
5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Rochdale Commissioners are  working with the Northern Care Alliance and 
fellow North East Sector commissioners to support the next stage of this  
transaction process. 
 
Northern Care Alliance (NCA)  Transaction FBC (Full Business Case) 
presentation 
The presentation (appendix 1) is designed to accompany the full business 
case submitted to NHS Improvement.  
In outlining the rationale for the acquisition of the Pennine sites (Bury, 
Rochdale and Oldham Care Organisation), the case outlines the benefits to 
partnerships and the importance of place in the development of local 
services. 
The presentation outlines further benefits to be derived from the transaction 
alongside the risks. 

 

6 Summary of Next Steps 
Rochdale Commissioners will continue to work in partnership with the Northern 
Care Alliance and Local Care Organisation provider to support delivery of the 
best possible services for the population of Rochdale. At this stage the 
presentation  is  shared with the group to show the current thinking and to 
support the development of plans across  Rochdale and North of  Greater 
Manchester. 

 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
7. There are significant financial challenges across the health system. The 

approval of the transaction will support  the development of a sustainable 
system for the future.  

 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
8. The risks associated with the transaction relate to the current  lack of sign 

off for the Business Case from NHS Improvement.  

 

Consultation 

 
9. This paper has been written in consultation with senior leaders. 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

10. There are no backgrounds 
papers 

 

 

For Further Information Contact: Nadia Baig Nadiabaig@nhs.net 
07896996301 

 

Page 30

mailto:Nadiabaig@nhs.net


 
 

 

Page 31



Transaction
FBC Presentation 

Simon Neville – Transaction Director 

Photo: Future Royal Oldham Hospital Site

P
age 32



2

P
age 33



The case for change 

Quality and Safety Financial 

2 0 2 0 3

PAHT “Drivers of the Deficit” report, commissioned by NHSI in 2018. Costs are 
broken down into: Structural drivers which are outside the immediate 
short/medium term control of the Trust or local health economy. Strategic drivers 
which are issues that are outside the control of a single organisation but within 
the control of the system as a whole. Operational drivers are issues that would be 
considered broadly within the control of the Trust in the short/medium term. 

N o r t h e r n  C a r e  A l l i a n c e

P
age 34



The NCA’s journey so far
There’s been significant work to get us here 

2 0 2 0 N o r t h e r n  C a r e  A l l i a n c e 4

2015
Dalton Review
SRFT CQC –

Outstanding
ICO & Group Vanguard

2016
PAT CQC Inadequate
Management Agreement 
development
Global Digital Exemplar

2017
NCA Established
Transaction initiated
Salford ICO

2018
SRFT CQC Outstanding 

PAT CQC Requires 
Improvement

2019
PAT CQC - Good
PCFT Community 

Transfers to SRFT 

FY 2020-21
PAT Board  in place
Two Management 
Agreements
Transaction completion

P
age 35



There are two formal transactions separating 
Pennine Acute Hospitals Trust 

2 0 2 0 P R E S E N T A T I O N  T I T L E  G O E S  H E R E 5

P
age 36



The Improvement has been dramatic 

2 0 2 0
N o r t h e r n  C a r e  A l l i a n c e

6

The CQC’s assessment in September 2019 means that Pennine Acute’s rating and standards of care have 
improved from ‘Inadequate’ in 2016 to overall ‘Good’ in just three years. 

P
age 37



Partnerships and the importance of Place

• We will increase our focus on and 
positive role in each of our localities, 
helping local people and 
communities to thrive.  

• Each of our areas differ and we will 
ensure local leaders, staff and 
services are better able to reflect 
their distinct characteristics. 

• Integrated care is provided across 
all our localities, tailored to the local 
environment. 

• We are a significant part of the 
fabric of local communities and our 
long-term sustainability is closely 
linked to the wellbeing of our 
populations – meaning we are an 
‘Anchor institution’ in each Place, as 
explained to the right.

2020 N o r t h e r n  C a r e  A l l i a n c e 7

P
age 38



Funding and investments secured and made to 
date

• The NCA have secured and implemented over £50m in investment to date 
for improvements at PAT including: 
• IM&T Stabilisation – significant network and server improvement with over £20m of 

investment secured and sharing of Global digital exemplar knowledge. 

• Estates improvements: including over £4m for NMGH ICF extensions 

• Over £8m invested in NMGH/ROH energy schemes 

• 20/21 GM prioritised £25m for IM&T (£11.9m) and estate funding (£13.1m)

• Significant investments and programmes of work have also been secured 
for SRFT including the ICO and ACC Vanguards, Global Digital Exemplar 
status

2 0 2 0 N o r t h e r n  C a r e  A l l i a n c e 8

P
age 39



Significant work has been 
undertaken developing business 
cases for SRFT and NES

HT: High risk General Surgery
• Currently with Treasury
• Implementation of HT model

SRFT Acute Receiving Centre
• Currently with Treasury
• Includes implementation of HT model

Oldham Hospital Transformation
• Wave 4b: Capacity to support commissioner strategic intent, urgent care 

standards and address areas of backlog maintenance. 

2 0 2 0 N o r t h e r n  C a r e  A l l i a n c e 9

P
age 40



More about the impact of COVID-19

2 0 2 0 N o r t h e r n  C a r e  A l l i a n c e 10

• We acknowledge the profound consequences of COVID and how this will impact the need 
to work flexibly.

• We are planning and working differently from business as usual as a result of the 
pandemic and health care emergency. 

• We have implemented IPC management and biosecurity measures which puts additional 
pressure on our sites. This is offset (in part) by moving elective pathways to other NCA 
sites. 

• The direct costs incurred in managing COVID have been reimbursed through our central 
submissions, there are further and on-going costs to support recovery with a fixed non –
recurrent COVID allocation to cover anticipated additional costs for the remainder of 
2020/21.

• We are developing a recovery plan with partners across our systems to overcome the 
challenges created by the pandemic. 

P
age 41



2 0 2 0 N o r t h e r n  C a r e  A l l i a n c e 11

In Summary

11

The acquisition will address 
and provide a solution to 
PAT’s on-going and 
extensive challenges, 
creating a high quality and 
financially sustainable future 
for the services provided 
across NES sites and 
Salford. 

Through approval of the 
Transaction we will be able 
to drive recovery, digital and 
process transformation, 
standards, productivity and 
quality at new levels of pace 
and scale. 

This is whilst giving staff the 
future certainty which they 
so thoroughly deserve. 

The future success and 
sustainability of local 
healthcare services across 
Salford, Oldham, Bury and 
Rochdale can only be truly 
achieved through the 
acquisition, genuine 
partnership working, and a 
joint ambition to reform and 
transform.

This partnership working 
and scale is needed now 
more than ever.  

We understand the risks and 
issues across PAT and SRFT 
and have the solutions to 
create transformation 
across the NCA. Our plans 
present an investible 
proposition aligned with 
local, regional and national 
strategies. The people of 
Salford, Bury, Rochdale and 
Oldham deserve high quality 
and sustainable services. 

The Full Business case 
articulates capital funding 
and sol to deliver vital 
estates and IT 
improvements. This is 
required to stabilise and 
update IT infrastructure and 
to provide fit-for-purpose 
facilities.

This will also drive a 
significant return on 
investment and 
improvement for all 
stakeholders. 

Together across our localities, over 4 years, we have made significant improvements across the PAT footprint taking the 
organisation from CQC “Inadequate” to “Good”. Through the transaction we can now drive further financial and care 

improvement. 

P
age 42



ROCHDALE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
Record of Decision 

 

TITLE  

DECISION  

REASON FOR 
DECISION 

 

ALTERNATIVE 
OPTIONS 
CONSIDERED 

 

DECISION MAKER  

DESIGNATION OF 
DECISION MAKER 

 

CONSULTEES  

DECLARED 
CONFLICTS OF 
INTEREST 

 

DISPENSATIONS 
GRANTED 

 

 
 
Signed: 
 
 
 
Position: 

Page 43

Agenda Item 9



 

Report to Integrated Commissioning Board 
 

 

Date of Meeting 27 October 2020 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Health & Wellbeing 
Report Author 
 
 
 
Lead Officer 

Gareth Davies ( for Adult 
Care Directorate & Public 
Health & Integrated 
Directorate) 
Sam Evans (Chief Finance 
Officer – Health & Social 
Care Integration) 

Public/Private Document Public 
 

 

Health & Social Care - Better Care Fund Budget Monitoring Quarter 
2 2020/21 

 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1.1 At its May 2020 meeting the Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) agreed 

the revised 2020/21 budgets for the Better Care Fund (BCF), this report 
updates the ICB and the Strategic Place Board (SPB) with the Quarter 2 (April 
to September 2020) budget monitoring for the BCF for the financial year 
2020/21. 

 

Recommendation 

 
2.1 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
2.3 

ICB notes the Quarter 2 monitoring information as at Sept 2020 period end. 
 
ICB notes that there are contingencies being held for budgets not yet allocated 
in 2020/21 of £37k and a forecast underspend against the equipment store 
budget of £118k giving a total forecast revenue underspend of £155k. 
 
ICB notes the forecast underspend against capital budgets of £318k in relation 
to the Autism Project adaptations (£150k) and the INT hubs (£168k), both of 
which are now expected to be spent in 2021/22.  

 
 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3.1 The Strategic Place Board (SPB) have ultimate sign off of the BCF budget as 

mandated in the BCF Policy Framework and Planning Guidance. The SPB 
have delegated responsibility for the BCF to the ICB. The revised 2020/21 
budget for the BCF was agreed by the ICB in May 2020, this report provides 
monitoring against those budgets as at September period end. 
 

Page 44



 

Key Points for Consideration 

 
4.1 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3 

The BCF revised budget was set at the ICB meeting in May 2020 in line with 
the BCF Policy Framework and Planning Guidance for 2017-19. 
 
The partners must have a Section 75 agreement to support the BCF budget 
and this was approved by the ICB at its September 2017 meeting. This has 
been updated and forms part of the overall pooled Health and Social Care 
Section 75 agreement for 2020/21 reported to July ICB.  
 
Alternatives Considered 
It is a requirement of the NHSE guidance to produce a budget for 2020/21 
which the ICB approved at its May 2020 meeting. This report updates the 
monitoring against the 2020/21 budget which is a requirement of the Section 
75 agreement. Therefore there are no alternatives to consider. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 45



Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5.1 Table 1 shows the updated 2020/21 revenue budget and the forecast financial 

position. 
 
Table 1 Revenue Budget and Forecast at September period end 

Line 
No 

Scheme 
 2020/21 
Budget  

 2020/21 Spend/ 
Committed 
Quarter 2  

 2020/21 
Forecast  

 Forecast 
Variance  

  Revenue Expenditure  £'s   £'s   £'s   £'s  

1 Funding of Social Care Services 
          

19,163,202  
            9,581,601  

          
19,163,202  

                            
-    

2 
Additional Funding in Adult Social Care 
notified in Spring Budget 2017 

            
1,568,389  

                784,195  
            

1,568,389  
                            

-    

3 Care Act Implementation 
                

205,498  
                102,749  

                
205,498  

                            
-    

  Carers Services         

4 Carers -universal services 
                

408,681  
                204,341  

                
408,681  

                            
-    

5 Carers night sitting service - dementia 
                  

81,600  
                  40,800  

                  
81,600  

                            
-    

  Carers sub total 
                

490,281  
                245,141  

                
490,281  

                            
-    

  Reablement Services         

6 Reablement - dementia support workers 
                  

86,817  
                  43,409  

                  
86,817  

                            
-    

7 
Reablement - Intermediate Care dementia 
flexible workers 

                  
64,309  

                  32,155  
                  

64,309  
                            

-    

8 Reablement - mental health outreach workers 
                

110,681  
                  55,341  

                
110,681  

                            
-    

9 Reablement - memory clinic dementia workers 
                  

52,708  
                  26,354  

                  
52,708  

                            
-    

10 Reablement - carers life after stroke 
                

138,689  
                  69,345  

                
138,689  

                            
-    

11 Reablement - equipment loan store 
                

974,945  
                341,622  

                
857,271  

(117,674)  

  Reablement sub total         1,428,149                  568,226          1,310,475  (117,674)  

  Intermediate tier service          

12 
Reablement (STAR's) plus to support the new 
service 

                
187,117  

                  93,559  
                

187,117  
                            

-    

13 Pennine Acute ITS contract  
            

5,933,642  
            2,966,821  

            
5,933,642  

                            
-    

14 Pennine Acute CQUIN - new funding from CCG 
                  

74,170  
                  37,085  

                  
74,170  

                            
-    

15 Winter Pressure Funding Expenditure 
            

1,108,358  
                554,179  

            
1,108,358  

                            
-    

16 Contingency for revenue schemes 
                  

68,242  
                  31,000  

                  
31,000  

 (37,242)  

  Intermediate Care sub total         7,371,529              3,682,644          7,334,287   (37,242)  

  Total Revenue Expenditure        30,227,048            14,964,556  30,072,132  (154,916)  

Page 46



            

  Income         

17 Contribution from CCG (17,933,566)  (8,966,783)  (17,933,566)  
                            

-    

18 Contribution from LA 
         

(9,616,735 ) 
(4,808,368)  (9,616,735)  

                            
-    

19 
Contribution from LA additional Grant notified 
in 2017 Spring Budget 

(1,568,389)  (784,195)  (1,568,389)  
                            

-    

20 Contribution from LA - Winter Pressure Funding (1,108,358)  (554,179)  (1,108,358)  
                            

-    

  Total Income (30,227,048)  (15,113,525)  (30,227,048)  
                            

-    

  
 

        

  (Surplus) income over expenditure 0                                              (148,969)     (154,916)  (154,916)  

 
 
5.2 
 
 
 
5.3 
 
 
 
5.4 
 
 
 
5.5 
 
 
 
 
5.6 
 
 
 
5.7 
 
 
 
 
 
5.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
There is a forecast underspend of £118k against the reablement equipment 
budget the majority of which is due to £85k of equipment purchased being 
rechargeable against the Covid Hospital Discharge programme. 
 
Since the last update, £31k of BCF Contingency has been used to fund the 
Urgent Treatment Centre highways signage leaving an unallocated 
contingency balance of £37k. 
 
Overall this provides a forecast in year saving of £155k. This position will 
continue to be monitored and a decision made on how this funding will be 
used at a future ICB. 
 
The full BCF guidance for 2020/21 has yet to be issued, which may impact 
on the minimum allocation towards the protection of Adult Social Care and 
could reduce the level of contingency available. An update will be provided 
to ICB once the full guidance is issued.   
 
The capital DFG budget is included in tables 2a and 2b below. The figures 
include the 2020/21 capital allocation and the balance carried over from 
2019/20. 
 
Capital Budget Carry Forwards of £635k were agreed to be brought forward to 
2020/21. £72k of this carry forward relates to DFG budgets, £150k is set aside 
for Adaptations to the planned Autism Project, and the remaining £413k has 
been earmarked to fund the capital costs in relation to Adult Social Care and 
Health integration hubs across the 6 localities. 
 
As at the end of September there is a forecast underspend of £318k against the 
capital budget. The £150k budget identified for adaptations to the Autism Project 
is not expected to be required until 2021/22, and £168k of spend on INT hubs is 
also forecast to be delayed until 2021/22. Any unspent budget as at the 31st of 
March will be carried forward to 2021/22. 
 
 
 
 

Page 47



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Table 2a  2020/21 Capital Budgets and Forecasts at Sept period end 

Line 
No 

Capital Schemes 
 2020/21  
Budget   

 2020/21 
Spend/ 

Committed 
Quarter 2  

 2020/21 
Forecast  

Variance 

    £'s £'s £'s £'s 

1a 
Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG)- 2020/21 
(see allocation below) 2,705,512 727,535 2,705,512 0 

  Total DFG in allocation below 2,705,512 727,535 2,705,512 0 

2 Capital Grant carried over from 2019/20         

2a DFG- Adaptations to Autism Project 150,000 0 0 (150,000) 

2b 
Adult Social Care and Health Integration 
Hubs 412,965 110,658 245,000 (167,965) 

  Total Capital Schemes 3,268,477 838,193 3,268,477 (317,965) 

3 Contribution from LA  (3,268,477) (838,193) (3,268,477) 317,965 

  Total Capital Contributions (3,268,477) (838,193) (3,268,477) 317,965 

  (Surplus) Contribution over expenditure 0 0 0 0 

 
The DFG programme was put on hold due to Covid and social distancing 
requirements, however spend was incurred for projects already underway that 
were completed in early 20/21. The DFG programme resumed in July and due to 
the high levels of demand is currently forecast to be fully spent in year. See table 
2b below for details on spend against each scheme. 
 
Table 2b Allocation of DFG Budget and Forecast included in table 2a above 

Line 
No 

Allocation of DFG 
 2020/21  
Budget   

 2020/21 
Spend/ 

Committed 
Quarter 2  

 2020/21 
Forecast  

Variance 

    £'s £'s £'s £'s 

4 Main DFG Budget 2,176,865 572,318 2,192,865 (16,000) 

5 DFG Top Up Grants 10,000 11,559 15,000 (5,000) 

6 Minor Adaptations 160,000 50,000 160,000 0 

7 Assistive Technology 75,000 20,000 75,000 0 

8 

Dementia, Falls and Excess Cold 
Payments 

10,000 1,211 10,000 0 

9 Repairs to Adaptations 20,000 0 20,000 0 

10 

Housing Options for Older People 
(HOOP) service 

40,000 20,000 40,000 0 

11 Care Homes Offer 96,000 52,447 75,000 21,000 

12 

Contribution to RBH new build 
properties for service users who 
we are unable to adapt for 45,000 0 45,000 0 

13 Contingency 72,647 0 72,647 0 

  Total 2,705,512 727,535 2,705,512 0 

 
 

Page 48



5.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Table 3 below shows a progress report on each of the schemes in the DFG 
programme. 
 
Table 3 Details of DFG Schemes 2020/21 

Scheme Update September 2020 

Main DFG Budget Whilst activity was quite limited between April - August, 

due to the programme being suspended because of 

Covid, we have slowly started to resume the programme 

and given the backlog, number of cases in the system and 

increased demand, depending on how quickly 

contractors can work, the supply chain remaining strong 

and no further Covid measures affecting the programme 

between October - 31 March 2021, a small overspend 

may result   

DFG Top Up Grants 

Minor Adaptations The number of minor adaptations has been lower than 

usual due to Covid.  If minor adaptations remain at pre-

Covid levels from now until 31/3/2020, we will achieve 

spend of £160,000 

Assistive Technology This is currently forecast to be spent in line with budget. 

Dementia, Falls and Excess Cold 
Payments 

Activity levels have been reduced due to Covid, but 

expected to achieve spend as demand returns to normal 

levels 

Repairs to Adaptations No repair works have been completed due to Covid but 

there are several with works imminently due to start and 

numbers of referrals have increased during the last 2 

months   

Housing Options for Older People 
(HOOP) service 

This spend will be incurred later in the year but we are 
committed to paying £40,000 to fund the post at RBH. 

Care Homes Offer A number of care homes haven’t been able to proceed 

with their installations due to Covid but the commitment 

has already been made with the provider for systems to 

be installed post lockdown.  Depending on how the Covid 

measures continue to affect this, some homes may not 

be able to complete their installations before 31/3/21. 

Contribution to RBH new build 

properties for service users who we 

are unable to adapt for 

Building works are nearing completion  

Contingency The level of demand in the system should lead to the 
contingency being fully utilised, depending on progress 
on the programme post Covid. 

 

Page 49



 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6.1 
 
 
 
 
6.2 

Any risk of operating the BCF in 2020/21 is covered in the Section 75 
agreement which was agreed by the ICB in September 2017. This has been 
updated and forms part of the overall pooled Health and Social Care Section 
75 agreement for 2020/21 reported to July ICB. 
 
Most of the budgets in the BCF are fixed price contracts but there are 
demand led budgets which could pose a financial risk mainly around the 
provision of equipment. Regular monitoring will allow commissioners to 
mitigate any risks and contingencies are included in both the capital and 
revenue budgets which could be used to mitigate risks. 
 

Consultation 

 
7.1 There is no requirement for consultation on the contents of this report other 

than with the partners i.e. the CCG and the LA. Relevant officers from both 
organisations have been consulted on the content of this report. 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8. LA Monitoring working papers 
CCG Monitoring working papers 

Number 1 Riverside 
Number 1 Riverside 

 

For Further Information Contact: Gareth Davies ( for Adult Care 
Directorate & Public Health & Integrated 
Directorate), Tel: 01706924888, 
gareth.davies@rochdale.gov.uk 

 

Page 50



 

Report to Integrated Commissioning Board 
 

 

Date of Meeting 27th October 2020 
Portfolio Cabinet Member Healthy 

Lives 
Report Author 
 
 
 
Lead Officer 

Gareth Davies ( for Adult 
Care Directorate & Public 
Health & Integrated 
Directorate) 
Sam Evans (Chief Finance 
Officer – Health & Social 
Care Integration) 

Public/Private Document Public 
 

 

Health and Social Care Pooled Budget Monitoring  Report 
September 2020 

 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.3 
 
 
 
1.4 
 
 
 
 
1.5 
 
 
 
 

To update the Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) on the financial position 
of the pooled budget for the financial year 2020/21 as at the end of September 
2020. The pooled budget excludes the Better Care Fund (BCF) which is being 
reported separately to the ICB in 2020/21. The pooled budget has been 
amended to take into account the savings previously reported to ICB.  
 
The Covid pandemic has caused a change in funding arrangements for the 
CCG, and there is uncertainty around the impact Covid will have on both 
partners this year. As a result of this uncertainty it was agreed at ICB and 
Cabinet on the 26th of May that the Health & Social Care Pool budget risk 
share agreement is changed for 2020/21 so that both partners are responsible 
for their own pooled fund gap and in year underspend or overspend. 
 
As previously reported to ICB The CCG opening pool gap on the Health & 
Social Care pooled budget for 2020/21 was £4.1m. The LA had set a balanced 
position for the LA Pooled Budgets. 
 
As at the end of September the LA is reporting a nil variance against pool 
budgets. This has reduced from the £0.5m overspend forecast against Adult 
Social Care at the end of July due to a reduction in residential placements and 
staffing underspends.  
 
The CCG finance regime is currently under a national command and control 
approach, whereby the CCG is instructed on how much to pay NHS providers 
and primary care contractors. This has been in place for months 1-6 of this 
financial year. CCGs are also instructed to record all of their COVID related 
expenditure on a monthly basis.  This expenditure along with all other CCG 

Page 51

Agenda Item 10



 
 
 
 
 
 
1.6 

expenditure is analysed for reasonableness. As a consequence of this 
approach CCGs should receive a reconciling payment which either increases 
or decreases their national allocation in line with their expenditure to achieve a 
break-even position. The guidance for months 7-12 has been released 
recently and an update will be given in the month 8 report. 
 
As at the end of September there has been £6.1m of Covid related costs 
claimed against the NHS Covid fund, £4.6m of which relate to H&SC pooled 
budgets. There are also £7.8m of Covid pressures being reported against pool 
budgets that forms part of the Local Authority £36.4m pressure. The Local 
Authority has received £16m of general Covid funding from the Government to 
date leaving a forecast £20.4m net pressure. The Local Authority continues to 
work alongside the Greater Manchester Combined Authority to attract 
additional funding from the Government and to understand the impact of these 
pressures on the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy 

 

Recommendation 

 
2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
2.3 

ICB notes the break-even position being forecast in relation to non-Covid pool 
budgets as at the end of September. If the current national finance regime 
continues for the remainder of this financial year there should be no pressure 
in relation to health budgets. Early work on the month 7-12 CCG position 
identifies that the pressure is in the region of £500k - £1m.  A further update 
will be provided in future reports 
 
As at the end of September, £12.4m of Covid costs are forecast against the 
Health & Social Care Pool Budget. £4.6m of these costs have been reclaimed 
from the NHS Covid fund, and £7.8m forms part of the Local Authority overall 
Covid-19 pressure of £36.4m of which £16m Government funding has been 
received to date. 
 
ICB note that the non-Covid break-even position being reported against Adult 
Social Care is largely due to one off contributions of £1.4m from the CCG 
towards expensive placements and enhanced Discharge to assess provision, 
and so further work is required to address the underlying service pressures 
going forward. To support the addressing of this pressure, it should be noted 
that the service and the finance team have recently commenced a financial 
sustainability review along with a review of new operating models to 
understand the increasing pressures within adult social care and the ongoing 
impacts of COVID. 

 
 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This report updates the ICB on the Health and Social Care pooled budgets for 
2020/21 in line with National Health Service England (NHSE) guidelines and 
the Greater Manchester (GM) Health and Social Care Partnership 
requirements. As part of operating a pooled budget regular monitoring reports 
are required. 
 
 

Page 52



3.2 The BCF has been excluded from the pooled reporting and will be reported 
separately to ICB in line with NHSE requirements for reporting each quarter. 

 

Key Points for Consideration 

 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
4.3 

The pooling of budgets between the two organisations, LA and CCG, is in line 
with NHSE guidelines to progress integration of Adult Social Care and Health 
and is in accordance with the decision made by Cabinet and the CCG 
Governing Body. 
  
The operation of a formal pooled budget has been in place from April 2018.  
 
Alternatives Considered 
The operation of a formal pool in 2020/21 builds on the shadow pool that was 
operated by the ICB in 2017/18 and is in line with 2018/19 & 2019/20 
reporting; therefore there are no alternatives to consider. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 53



Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5.1 Table 1 below shows the opening Health & Social Care Pool Budget for 

2020/21.  It should be noted that this is before the national approach for NHS 
budgets was enforced for months 1-6 of this financial year 
 

Health and Social Care Pooled Budget 2020/21 

2020/21 Expenditure Budgets 

Opening 
2020/21 
Budget  

£m's 

Adult's Services   

Management, Support and Commissioning 4.5 

Adults, Older People and Physical Disability 42.6 

Learning Disability / Mental Health 58.6 

Acute Health Care 116.2 

Primary Care - Prescribing 32.3 

Other Services 3.7 

Adult Public Health 7.7 

Total Adult Pooled Services 265.6 

Children's Services   

Management, Support and Commissioning 2.9 

Children's Early Intervention 6.6 

Health Community Services 7.2 

Learning Disability / Mental Health 7.2 

Special Educational Needs 4.1 

Acute Health Care 23.0 

Children 0-19 Public Health 5.0 

Cared for Children and Safeguarding 30.7 

Primary Care - Prescribing 8.6 

Other Services 0.8 

Total Children's Pooled Services 96.1 

Total Health and Social Care Pooled Budgets 361.7 

Contribution from Partners   

CCG -255.3 

LA -102.3 

Total Contributions -357.6 

Opening Gap 4.1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 54



5.2 NHSE Current Arrangements 

The CCG has received 6 months allocations to cover April to September 

expenditure in 2020/21. The calculation of the budgets is based on the 

Agreement of Balances exercise undertaken at month 09 which aims to 

highlight any mismatches between NHS organisations in relation to finances. 

This was then amended based on month 11 actual expenditure in CCG 

ledgers. The CCG were notified on the 31st of July that these arrangements 

were expected to continue until the end of September. 

CCG’s have then been instructed to pay those trusts with a high expenditure 

with the CCG a block value based on the calculations above. The allocation to 

match this expenditure has been given to CCG’s. 

CCG’s only expenditure with NHS Trusts should be as those identified by 

NHSE. The trusts identified for HMR CCG can be seen below along with the 

monthly block payments.  It should be noted that in order to support Providers 

cash flows during the pandemic CCGs were instructed to pay a month in 

advance for these block contracts:- 

 April - September Block Payments 

  

Provider 
£000 per 

month 

PENNINE ACUTE NHS 
TRUST 14,612 

PENNINE CARE NHS FT 2,894 

SALFORD ROYAL NHSFT 1,150 

NW AMBUL SVC NHST 876 

MANC UNI NHS FT 891 

THE CHRISTIE NHS FT 110 

WRIGHT/WGN/LEIGH NHS 
FT 86 

TAMESIDE HOSPITAL 
NHSFT 65 

ROYAL BOLTON HOSP 
NHSFT 46 

CALDERDALE/HUDD NHS FT 28 

EAST LANCS NHS TRUST 44 

MERSEY CARE NHS FT 19 

LEEDS TH NHST 20 

CHESH/WIRRAL PART 
NHSFT 27 

TOTAL 20,868 

 
 Non NHS providers should be paid based on activity or as per the contract 

agreed in previous years.  There should be no investment in new services at 

Page 55



this time.  Any overspend the CCG encounters must be explained to NHSE 

who will then fund this pressure. 

5.3 Table 2 shows the latest monitoring position against the Health & Social Care 

Pooled Budget as at the end of September. Due to the current finance regime 

the CCG finds itself in, the table has been produced to reflect the 6 months 

CCG budgets as determined by NHSE/I with a balancing figure that reflects 

the remaining 6 months on a pro rata basis to the original CCG opening 

budgets as per table 1 above. The forecast pool gap has been adjusted to 

reflect the continuation of the current health funding regime until the end of 

September. 

5.4 Table 2 

Health and Social Care Pooled Budget 2020/21 

September 
Monitoring 

position 

2020/21 
Budget 

2020/21 
Forecast 

Variance 
Narrative 

£m's £m's £m's 

Expenditure Budgets       

Adult's 
Services 

        

Management, 
Support and 
Commissioning 

-1.5 -1.7 -0.2 
There is a £0.2m underspend forecast 
against staffing budgets in this area due to 
a delay in filling vacancies. 

Adults, Older 
People and 
Physical 
Disability 

27.1 34.6 7.5 

- It was anticipated that £1.7m of LA costs 
in this category would be funded in 
2020/21 via a loan from the Health and 
Social Care Partnership but it has since 
been confirmed that this is no longer 
available. A one-off contribution of £1m 
from the CCG towards expensive 
placements has helped reduce this 
pressure to £0.7m. 
- Due to the current funding arrangements 
and reduction in residential placements, 
Adult Social Care is forecasting a £0.6m 
underspend against other budgets in this 
area. 
- There are £7.4m LA Covid pressures 
forecast against this area. 

Learning 
Disability / 
Mental Health 

46.7 47.0 0.3 

-£0.3m of LA costs for LD/MH were 
anticipated to be funded via the loan 
mentioned above.  
-The CCG has made a further non 
recurrent contribution of £0.2m to the pool 
in 2020/21 to reduce the LA pressure in 
year, however this is now a pressure to 
the CCG so the pool variance against this 
area hasn’t changed. 

Page 56



Acute Health 
Care 

55.7 55.8 0.1 Non NHS Providers Over Performance 

Primary Care - 
Prescribing 

15.8 15.5 -0.3 

There had been an Over accrual for June-
August which has been retrospectively 
funded. This is partially offset by an over 
performance in September 

Other Services 5.7 5.7 0.0 
 

Adult Public 
Health 

8.0 8.5 0.5 
- There are £0.5m LA Covid pressures 
forecast against Public Health budgets. 

CCG Adults 
Budget 
October 2020 
to March 2021 

106.3 106.3 0.0 
 -This represents the forecast CCG Adult 
Services expenditure budgets for October 
to March 2021. 

Total Adult 
Pooled 
Services 

263.8 271.7 7.9   

Children's 
Services 

        

Management, 
Support and 
Commissioning 

2.9 2.9 0.0   

Children's 
Early 
Intervention 

7.4 7.4 0.0   

Health 
Community 
Services 

6.3 6.3 0.0   

Learning 
Disability / 
Mental Health 

3.5 3.5 0.0   

Special 
Educational 
Needs 

4.2 4.2 0.0   

Acute Health 
Care 

11.0 11.1 0.1 Non NHS Providers Over Performance 

Children 0-19 
Public Health 

5.3 5.3 0.0   

Cared for 
Children and 
Safeguarding 

31.0 33.7 2.7 
- There are £2.7m LA Covid pressures 
forecast against Children's Services. 

Primary Care - 
Prescribing 

4.2 4.0 -0.2 

There had been an Over accrual for June-
August which has been retrospectively 
funded. This is partially offset by an over 
performance in September 

Other Services 0.7 0.7 0.0   

CCG 
Children’s 
Budget 
October 2020 

23.4 23.4 0.0 
 -This represents the forecast CCG 
Children’s expenditure budgets for 
October to March 2021. 

Page 57



to March 2021 

Total 
Children's 
Pooled 
Services 

99.9 102.5 2.6   

Total Health 
and Social 
Care Pooled 
Budgets 

363.7 374.2 10.5   

Contribution 
from Partners 

        

CCG -258.8 -261.8 -3.0 

-The CCG has received £4.1m of Covid 
health funding to offset pooled Covid 
costs, £1.4m of which is already reflected 
in the figures above. The CCG is 
forecasting a £0.1m underspend against 
pooled budgets which will be repayable to 
NHS England under the current funding 
arrangements.  
'-The CCG is contributing an additional 
£0.3m in year to cover 50% of the late 
overspend on ASC in 2019/20, with the 
LA contribution reducing by the same 
amount. 

LA -103.9 -103.6 0.3 

Total 
Contributions 

-362.7 -365.4 -2.7   

Forecast 
Position 

1.0 8.8 7.8 

The revised gap of £8.8m represents 
- A £7.8m net forecast of LA Covid 
pressures. 
- The CCG allocations for months 7-12 
have been released but there is ongoing 
work with GM to understand the 
implications. The CCG has estimated a 
£1m pressure which will be finalised once 
the system finances have been agreed. 
 

 

5.5 As at the end of September the LA is reporting a nil variance against pool 

budgets. This has reduced from the £0.5m overspend forecast against Adult 

Social Care at the end of July due to a reduction in residential placements and 

staffing underspends. There remains an underlying £2m recurrent pressure 

representing the continuation of services that were previously funded by 

Transformation Funding and were planned to be funded from a GM H&SCP 

loan in 20/21 which is no longer available. The pressure has been partially 

offset in year by a non-recurrent £1.4m contribution from the CCG towards 

expensive placements and an improved discharge to assess offer, along with a 

Page 58



forecast reduction in Adult Social Care spend on residential placements due to 

the implications of Covid. The Adult Care Service along with support from 

Finance Services is working to address how these budgets will be funded going 

forward. There is a £7.8m variance representing the unfunded pooled LA Covid 

costs. 

5.6 As at the end of September the CCG pool position is a £0.1m underspend. The 

£0.1m favourable balance after fully funding the COVID costs is due to non-

recurrent benefits and will be recovered by NHSE from the CCG as per current 

contracting guidance. The overall CCG position will be breakeven once the 

COVID allocation is received as reflected in the September position. 

Covid 19 

CCG Impact 

5.7 The CCG is able to reclaim costs incurred as a result of Covid-19.  The 

information regarding expenditure is submitted via a monthly return to NHSE 

England (NHSE). NHSE reimburse the CCG retrospectively for these costs if 

they are deemed reasonable. 

5.8 For the financial year 2020/21 to the end of September, the CCG has submitted 

the return to show the below Covid-19 Expenditure as part of the monthly 

return: 

COVID TOTAL £000 

Primary Care 854  

Prescribing 480  

Hospital Discharge Programme 2,819  

Hot Hubs 988  

Continuing Healthcare (CHC) 352  

Other 645  

TOTAL 6,138  

 

5.9 This table is included for completeness however £1.580m of these costs sit 

outside of the pooled fund. £4.558m of the total CCGs COVID claim falls 

within the pooled fund. 

5.10 LA Impact 

The LA has received £16m of funding to offset additional expenditure and 

reduced income caused by the impact of Covid-19. Currently the pressure is 

£36.4m which exceeds the funding that has been received. 

Page 59



Below is a summary of forecast additional expenditure less specific grant 

funding, totalling £11m: 

Expenditure £m 

Adult Social Care  6.718 

Public Health 2.128 

Children's Social Care 2.729 

Education 0.481 

Highways and transport & Housing 0.834 

Cultural & Related 2.229 

Environmental and regulatory services 1.134 

Finance & Corporate  4.077 

Other services 1.468 

Estimated Total Spending Pressure 21.798 

Less funding received for Infection Control, 
Test & Trace, Hardship Fund and Health 
(via CCG) 

-
10.782 

Estimated Funding Pressure 11.016 

 

 Below is summary detail of the forecast loss of income, currently £25.4m: 

Loss of income £m 

Business Rates/Council Tax 9.500 

Sales, fees and charges 4.906 

Commercial Income 10.998 

Other 0.000 

Estimated Total reduction in Income 25.404 

 

Overall this gives a total forecast budget pressure of £36.4m for the LA in 

2020/21, which has been partially offset by the general Covid grant received 

to date of £16m, leaving a £20.4m budget pressure to be addressed in year 

as detailed below:- 

  

 

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
  
 

LA Covid 19 Forecast Pressures 
2020/21 £'m 

Cost Pressures net of specific grants   

Pooled LA Cost Pressures 10.644 

less Pooled LA expenditure reclaimed 
from joint hospital discharge programme 
as at the end of September 

-2.819 

Non Pooled LA Cost Pressures 3.191 

LA Total Loss of Income 25.404 

Estimated Total Pressure 36.420 

LA General Covid 19 Funding Received -16.032 

Net Covid 19 Pressure 20.388 

Page 60



5.11 Currently the impact is projected at £36.4m after taking onto account the £2.8m 

of pooled LA costs incurred to date that have been charged against the Covid 

hospital discharge programme. The LA has received £16m of general Covid 

funding to offset these pressures, and work continues by the Local Authority to 

understand the impact of Covid-19 on the Council’s Medium Term Financial 

Strategy. At a Greater Manchester level there is work being undertaken to 

understand the impact of Covid-19 on the Transport levy, Fire and Rescue, and 

the Waste Disposal levy, each of which may have an impact on Rochdale’s 

overall position. Collectively the 10 Districts within Greater Manchester continue 

to work with the Government to secure further funding against these pressures, 

however at this stage there is no certainty. 

5.12 Forecast Covid 19 related expenditure pressures against LA pooled budgets 

total £10.6m, of which £2.8m has been charged against the Covid hospital 

discharge programme for costs claimed up until the end of September. 

5.13 The LA received a £2.2m share of the Care Home Infection Control grant. 75% 

of this grant has been paid direct to in borough care homes in line with the 

terms of the grant. The remaining 25% has been offered to other care providers 

to cover the costs of any Covid related sickness/absence. 

5.14 A new infection control grant was announced in September to continue to 
manage the level of infection within the social care sector between October 
2020 and March 2021. The LA has received £2m, of which 80% is to be 
allocated to Care Homes and Community Care providers on a per bed/ service 
user basis, and the LA has limited discretion on how the remaining 20% will be 
allocated. 

 
5.15 There are a number of aligned services which sit outside of the pooled budget 

which are listed in table 3. These are not under the control of the ICB but are 

included here for information, decision making around these budgets remains 

with the LA or CCG. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 61



 Table 3 

 Aligned Services 

Service Host 
Budget 
£000's 

Health Protection PH 160 

Physical Activity PH 544 

Other Public Health PH 1,192 

Link4Life PH 2,368 

Management and Strategy CSC 243 

Shared Services with Bury  CSC 574 

Sufficiency and Access CSC 45 

School Improvement, Organisation and Personnel CSC 855 

Educational Psychology/coordinator CSC 456 

Regional Adoption Agency CSC 1,279 

Primary Care CCG 6,937 

Acute Services CCG 49,254 

Core Running Costs CCG 4,128 

Primary Care & Co Commissioning CCG 39,010 

Other CCG CCG 1,340 

Total Aligned Services   108,385 

 
  

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6.1 
 
 
 
 
 
6.2 

The pooled budget has been agreed to be operated in 2020/21. Section 75 of 
the National Health Service 2006 Act gives powers to local authorities and 
health bodies to establish and maintain pooled funds out of which payment 
may be made towards expenditure incurred in the exercise of prescribed LA 
functions and prescribed NHS functions. 
 
Under the Section 75 Risk Share agreement, If a revenue overspend or 
underspend remains at the end of a financial year, the Partners agree that 
such underspends and overspends will be managed by the respective 
organisation in 2020/21.  This is as a consequence of the different financial 
regimes and funding for COVID and will be revisited for 2021/22. 
 

Consultation 

 
7.1 There is no requirement for consultation on the contents of this report other 

than with the partners i.e. the CCG and the LA. Relevant officers from both 
organisations have been consulted on the content of this report. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 62



Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8. LA Monitoring working papers 
 
CCG Monitoring working papers 

Number 1 Riverside 

Number 1 Riverside 

 

For Further Information Contact: Gareth Davies ( for Adult Care 
Directorate & Public Health & Integrated 
Directorate), Tel: 01706924888, 
gareth.davies@rochdale.gov.uk 

 

Page 63



 

 

 

Report to Integrated Commissioning Board 
 

 

Date of Meeting 27th October 2020    
Portfolio Cabinet Member for  

Healthy Living  
  

Report Author Sally McIvor   
Public/Private Document Public   
    

 

Rochdale Health and Care System Intentions, including 
Commissioning Intentions 

 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1.1 In June and July 2020, the Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) received 

papers which outlined our next steps in continuing the development of the 

Strategic Commissioning Function (SCF) and Local Care Organisation (LCO) 

and the development of our system wide health and care plans. Our early 

thinking in relation to commissioning intentions was presented, with 

commitment to engage both the health and care system and the public in their 

further development. 

1.2 This paper seeks to describe our Health and Care System Intentions, which 

include our commissioning intentions. These intentions have been developed 

following engagement from across the health and care system including 

senior leaders, local Councillors, lay members and clinical leaders. In addition, 

a public engagement programme of work has been developed which has 

started with a series of early conversations to inform our direction of travel. 

The paper describes this engagement. A joint ICB/LCO Board development 

session took place in September which focussed on four key areas with the 

aim of further defining them.  

1.3 This paper brings together this work, including our response to feedback from 

engagement and puts forward our Health and Care Intentions and 

commissioning intentions for approval which will inform our decisions about 

SCF and LCO development, commissioning and service delivery for 2021-

2022. 

Page 64

Agenda Item 11



 

 

1.4 The system intentions are also informed by our system response to the “third 

phase of NHS response to COVID-19” and subsequent pan-GM discussions 

with the Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership (GM HSCP). 

Our direction of travel aligns with the requirements of Phase 3 and will 

continue to be developed in year.  

1.5 This paper outlines our high-level system and commissioning intentions for 

approval 

Recommendation 

 
2.1 ICB are asked to approve the health and care system intentions, including 

commissioning intentions as set out in the paper 
  
 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3.1 To support our decisions about SCF and LCO development, commissioning 

and service delivery for 2021-2022 
 

Key Points for Consideration 

  
4.1 The paper presented to ICB in July started to describe a set of high-level 

commissioning intentions which were grouped into two themes: 

 System development and culture 

 Service delivery and development 

It also described a plan to engage with key stakeholders, including members 
of the public. 

This report provides an update on the engagement work carried out to date. It 
should be noted that our engagement work was only the start of a 
conversation with the public, to test out if there was broad support for our 
priorities and to ask the public how they would want us to engage with them 
going forward.  

The report also provides a description of our health and care system 
intentions, including commissioning intentions for approval. 

 
4.2  Public Engagement 

4.2.1 What did we do & Who did we do it with? 

Public engagement was undertaken to inform the final proposed commissioning 

intentions. The engagement was designed and delivered through a task and 

finish group led by HMR CCG and Rochdale Council involving communications 

and engagement leads from across the health and social care system, 

commissioners, Rochdale’s LCO, Health watch and the VCFSE sector 

facilitated by Action Together. The group worked in an integrated way to deliver 

the engagement using co-operative engagement principles to co-design the 

engagement approach.  

Page 65



 

 

The task and finish group asked the Inclusive Messaging Group to help co-

design the messages to be used during the period of engagement planned and 

to make some recommendations about how the engagement could be 

undertaken inclusively within the tight timescales. The Inclusive Messaging 

Group is a group led by Action Together and made up of different community 

and voluntary sector groups who have access and connection to typically ‘hard 

to reach’ groups of people and individuals. The inclusive messaging group have 

supported to ensure that key messages are accessible by advising on 

approaches, methods and types of language as well as practically providing 24-

hour translation services amongst other support. This group has helped to 

support the development of messages directed at those negatively impacted by 

COVID or had their health inequalities worsened. 

The commissioning intentions task and finish group developed a presentation 

informed by the inclusive messaging group recommendations. The presentation 

described, in an accessible way, what the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 

and Local Authority (LA) do, what commissioning intentions are, how they are 

chosen as the CCG’s and LA’s priorities and what the intended health and care 

priorities for 2021/22 are. The presentation can be found in Appendix 1. 

A series of online focus groups were held throughout September led by 

Healthwatch and Action Together where the commissioning intentions were 

presented via the presentation described and reflections sought by focussing 

on the following three questions: 

 Initial reflections? 

 Would you like to continue to be engaged on these plans?  

 How would you like us to engage with you going forwards? 

The groups that were engaged through this process are outlined below:  

 HWR Advisory Group  

 HWR Volunteers 

 Black Asian Minority Ethnic Covid Focus Group 

 Youth Parliament 

 Real Change Partnership (Partnership of VCFSE orgs tackling 

homelessness, in attendance: Action Together, The Sanctuary Trust, 

Petrus, The Bond Board) 

 Action Together system change managers 

 Inclusive Messaging group (Action Together, Europia, Healthwatch, 

Rochdale and District Disability Action Group (RADDAG), Rochdale & 

District Mind, Up CIC, Awakening Minds, Rochdale Council, Living Well) 

 Grassroots Gathering (x23 VCFSE organisations) 

 

The focus groups were complemented by a public survey that was also 

developed by commissioning intentions engagement task and finish group, 

Page 66



 

 

supported by the Inclusive Messaging Group.  Respondents to the survey were 

asked the following:  

 Question 1: Do you agree with the priorities?  

o Do you agree with the priorities for Children and Young People’s 

Health and Care in Rochdale?  

o Do you agree with the priorities for Adults Health and Care in 

Rochdale?  

o Do you agree with the priorities for Covid-19 Services in 

Rochdale?  

 Question 2: Why do you agree or disagree with the priorities?  

 Question 3: Are there other areas of Health and Care that are important 

to you?  

 Question 4: Would you like to engage with us further regarding the 

priorities?  

The survey published on the Council website, the Council and CCG social 

media channels and shared widely by health and social care partners and non-

statutory partners to staff and stakeholders. The focus groups and community 

conversations were also held online via video conference. 

It is recognised that outlets for engagement are limited to online by the current 

COVID-19 rules and restrictions and it is acknowledged that undertaking the 

engagement digitally is not fully inclusive. However, the organisations that took 

part in the focus groups and community conversations represent wider 

members of the community who may not have access to digital. The 

engagement task group also developed a statement of commitment to highlight 

to the public that this initial engagement activity is the start of a conversation 

with them. The group are dedicated to further develop a full engagement 

programme, giving opportunities to engage, co-design and co-produce services 

as health and care plans are progressed. 

The demographics detail for those involved in the focus groups and survey are 

provided in appendix 2. 

4.2.2  Key Outcomes  

The general consensus from both the focus groups, community led 

discussions and the survey was that the public agree with the priorities set out 

in the proposed commissioning intentions and that they are the right thing to 

do, however there was concern about how the priorities would be delivered 

with limited access and waiting times increasing during the pandemic.  There 

was also concern highlighted in the survey and the focus groups that the 

information shared does not give full details of the priorities and they would 

like to understand more of this detail. 

 

 

Page 67



 

 

The survey response is set out below:  

 58 (89%) agree with the priorities for Children and Young People’s 

Health and Care in Rochdale 

 61 (94%) agree with the priorities for Adult’s Health & Care in Rochdale 

 60 (92%) agree with the priorities for Covid-19 Services in Rochdale 

 25 (39%) would like to engage with us further regarding the priorities 

A full summary of the survey responses can be found in appendix 3. 

Participants of the survey were given the opportunity to expand on their 

answers as to why they agreed or disagreed with the priorities and also 

address what was important to them in terms of health and care via free text 

boxes.  The responses have been reviewed and combined with the outcome 

of the discussions held during the focus groups with the following key themes 

identified:  

 There needs to be greater focus on access to mental health 

 Improved SEND services for children and the inclusion of ‘real’ voices 

in the development of children’s services  

 Improved access to face to face appointments with GP’s with many 

describing telephone access as difficult to get the service they want 

 Access to services and procedures in general and concern around the 

back log and waiting lists worsened by the pandemic and how this is 

being communicated to patients  

 Improved services for the frail and elderly, in particular dementia 

services 

 The need for improved communication with the public regarding how 

they access services and to support this behaviour change (in 

particular urgent care access) 

 Trust and relationships with people and the community are important 

and this can be built be involving local people in the planning and 

design of services  

A more detailed write up with verbatim responses from the focus groups and 

the survey is available on request and will be used to inform future 

engagement in relation to specific services. 

Participants from the Focus Groups and Community Conversations had the 

opportunity to express how they would like to be engaged in the future in 

relation to the health and care priorities. The suggestions are summarised 

below:  

 Start with a question not a solution, explain constraints so we can work 
within them or help overcome them (time/money/people) 

 Utilise engagement spaces/work that exists, build relationships 
between systems and communities to create lasting opportunities for 
collaboration 

 Resource coproduction appropriately  

Page 68



 

 

 Embed existing engagement insight, patient voice and experience in 
planning and development of services 
 

4.2.3  Health and Care Stakeholder Engagement 

In addition to speaking to the public a wider programme of engagement has 

taken place which has included senior health and care leaders, local 

Councillors, lay members and clinical leaders. This culminated in a joint 

development session for ICB and the LCO Board in September which 

focussed in on four key areas for more detailed discussions. These areas 

were: 

 Prevention and public health 

 Integrated neighbourhood teams Health and Social Care (including 

primary care) – how they work and how they link to the wider 

PLACE/neighbourhood 

 Children’s Health and Care services 

 Mental Health Services 

The outcomes of these sessions have been circulated to all attendees and 

have be utilised in the development of our intentions.  

 

4.2.4 Engagement Next Steps  

The Commissioning Intentions Engagement Task and Finish Group will 

develop feedback to the public to advise how their reflections have been 

incorporated into the proposed health and care priorities. An engagement 

programme will be developed taking into consideration the comments 

received during the focus groups as to how the public would like to continue to 

be engaged going forwards. The plan will ensure that there are opportunities 

to engage, co-design and co-produce services as health and care plans are 

progressed and will enable public and patient voice to be integrated into the 

services developed.  

 

4.3 System Development and Culture  

 The development of our health and care system, in terms of both contractual 

arrangements, behaviours and culture, will be fundamental to our successful 

delivery of our borough outcomes, as described in our Locality Plan. 

 It is important to note that whilst the NHS is currently operating under a 

different command and control regime due to the COVID pandemic, it is 

currently our assumption that we will be able to formally enact the contracting 

arrangements as set out in our system intentions below. Should the current 

command and control arrangements continue into 2021/2022, therefore 

preventing formal contract arrangements being enacted, it is our intention to 

continue to develop our informal arrangements. This would mean, in effect, 

Page 69



 

 

that the LCO would take responsibility for the areas which would have been in 

the LCO contract from April 2021.  

 The following sets out our intentions for approval. 

 

4.3.1  ICB and LCO Board development 

It is our intention to further develop the joint working arrangements between 

the ICB and the LCO Board and through this mechanism jointly agree system 

governance, including clinical governance, and accountability to the public. 

These joint arrangements will describe how the boards will hold each other to 

account to deliver our borough outcomes, i.e. joint assurance arrangements 

will be developed. 

In addition, we will support the LCO to develop governance arrangements that 

will be fit for purpose to manage the LCO contract via the lead provider model, 

with particular emphasis on partnership working.  

 

4.3.2 Population health embedded in everything we do 

We have agreed our population health outcomes in our Locality Plan and we 

share the ambition to improve healthy life expectancy and reduce inequalities.  

 

Local priorities; 

 We protect and improve the health and wellbeing of our local residents 

and communities based on our Locality Plan and JSNA priorities 

 We continue to respond and manage the impact of Covid-19 across all 

outcome areas 

 Equalities and health inequalities action and Leadership is in place 

across the system 

 We make every contact count to support local people and communities 

 Plans are in place to address the wider determinants of health 

including; skills, employment, poverty, debt, education, housing and 

environment 

 Action on Social value  

 We support people to manage their health and wellbeing and 

behaviour  

 We have person centred and community centred approaches  

 Ensuring we have Health promoting workplaces and settings and we 

lead by example 

 Services are audited to ensure equity 

 Supporting our local voluntary and community sector to thrive 

Equality and reducing inequalities have never been more of a priority with the 

impact of the Covid-19 pandemic bringing these into even sharper focus in the 

borough. This will be a golden thread running through everything we do. This 

has been agreed as a key priority. 

Page 70



 

 

 

4.3.3 Increasing our focus on community engagement, including co-design 

There is a strong commitment to develop our community engagement across 

the Health and Social Care System. All of our system partners engage with 

communities in different ways. It is our intention to utilise the Co-Operative 

Engagement Framework to ensure that we interact in the most appropriate 

way, be that through engagement, consultation, co-design or a combination 

approach. We also intend to develop a method of sharing the insight and 

intelligence gathered through engagement, across the health and social care 

system and with the community. 

 

4.3.4 Development of Primary Care Networks (PCNs) 

PCNs are a critical element in the delivery of the NHS Long Term Plan. They 

bring together GP practices into networks with other primary care and 

community organisations, enabling more integrated provision of services to 

local populations.  

The six PCNs in Rochdale are a vital part of our neighbourhoods and together 

they help to inform the development of the place-based strategy for the local 

area. We will continue to work with the PCNs as a key delivery partner within 

our local care organisation.  

 

4.3.5 Financial Probity 

Rochdale locality is committed to focus on value for money in our 

commissioning strategy, maintaining a strong focus on securing value for 

money which protects outcomes whilst improving productivity and ensuring 

better use of public resources.  

In the context of the LCO the consideration of the flow of money and 

investment across a local system provides the ability to ensure value for 

money and improvement of population health outcomes by determining the 

delivery of services across public, private and VCSF organisations to achieve 

improved population health outcomes.   

 

4.3.6 Increasing our focus on prevention including “Good Help” 

Rochdale is committed to a neighbourhood, citizen and community led 
approach to support transformation of health, social care and community care 
services at a neighbourhood level. This is a prevention-based approach as 
outlined in the locality plan:  

‘Prevention will be part of everything we do, and we will support our residents 
and workforce to take care of themselves and others. We will take action to 
stop problems from arising or becoming worse.’ 

Our local council corporate plan commits us to working towards collective 
change where ‘individuals will practice self-help and make choices so that 

Page 71



 

 

they are able to look after themselves and others.’ This begins with us as a 
workforce working together with a shared value base.  

 The LCO is also committed to ensuring that its approach within 
neighbourhoods adds value and builds upon existing partnerships, networks 
and service approaches currently within each neighbourhood. We will 
therefore continue to look for opportunities to align services to the LCO to: 

  

 embed a prevention-based approach 

 bring staff together to coordinate and plan activities at neighbourhood 
level and contribute to wider Public Sector Reform (PSR) agenda around 
neighbourhood working.  

 ensure that neighbourhood health and wellbeing initiatives are co-
produced and involve local residents. 

 build and further develop community based assets. 

 ensure that current activities are built upon to make sure they are 
connected and sustainable. 

 ensure communities who do not identify with a place feel truly 
represented. 

 engage with local residents to identify grass roots ideas and priorities  

 

4.3.7 Development of the Local Care Organisation including understanding 

the LCO “form” 

We need to continue to develop our LCO. We have developed a clear view on 

our medium-term commissioning arrangements and outlined a phased 

approach in previous reports to ICB which culminated in a single, whole 

population health contract by 2023/24.  Our phased approach has altered 

slightly, due to the pause whilst responding to the initial phase of the 

pandemic and restrictions on contracting arrangements. The final LCO form 

and timescales need to be further understood and developed. We will 

consider the current legislative framework, whilst acknowledging that this is 

likely to change. 

Despite the pause in contractual arrangements, the LCO has continued to 

develop and grow as a system, with clear system-wide governance 

arrangements and priorities now established. 

Of equal importance to the contracting arrangements, are the services which 

we will align to the LCO. These will not form part of any formal contract but 

will be formally aligned through a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) and 

will operate as though under contract. We will continue to further define these 

aligned service arrangements.   

4.3.8 Tactical commissioning to be fully defined and understood across the 

system including health, social care and public health 

We intend to clearly define our tactical commissioning arrangements, in line 

with our phased approach to the development of the LCO contract and 

aligned services.  

Page 72



 

 

Throughout the pandemic commissioners and providers have learned how 

best to work together, wherever possible wrapping the most appropriate 

people around work programmes, regardless of employing organisation. This 

has informed our thinking about tactical commissioning and it is our intention 

to continue to build on this learning.  

We will consider tactical commissioning arrangements for services aligned to 

the LCO in the same way as those contracted with the LCO and have started 

to pilot tactical commissioning arrangements in adult social care to support 

our learning. 

 

4.4 Service Delivery and Development 

The following section describes our intentions in relation to specific service 

areas. 

 

4.4.1 Recovery, rebuilding and reforming as appropriate taking the learning 

from our COVID experience 

The onset of the COVID 19 pandemic necessitated a number of changes in 

ways of working across health and social care. The national command and 

control arrangements for contracts led to a change in commissioner and 

provider relationships and this, combined with the history of joint working, 

brought about a new level of collaboration. 

As the pandemic has progressed and requirements of health and social care 

have changed the LCO has continued to develop, learning from the 

experience and supporting the needs of the local population. Revised 

governance arrangements are now in place which reflect the learning from the 

pandemic response and support the LCO in delivering improved outcomes for 

our local population.  

As a system we review our learning from COVID on an ongoing basis and will 

continue to do so. ICB received a paper in May 2020 (Health and Care Next 

Phase Planning) which described our early learning. In addition, numerous 

submissions have been made to the GM H&SCP describing how we have 

learned as a system during our COVID response. 

The system governance arrangements, established through our learning, will 

continue to develop. The LCO Executive Leadership Group will continue to 

drive recovery as set out in the third phase of NHS response to COVID-19. 

 

4.4.2 Integrated Neighbourhood Teams (INT) deepening to include Mental 

Health, housing/ homelessness and place.  

The integrated neighbourhood teams include services from across health and 

adult social care. Moving into 2021/22 there is the intent to review the adult 

community services input into the integrated teams and to support the 

Page 73



 

 

development of integrated working with Primary Care Networks and Mental 

Health services. 

The aim is to bring staff together to coordinate and plan activities at 

neighbourhood level and contribute to wider Public Sector Reform (PSR) 

agenda around neighbourhood working, embedding a prevention-based 

approach, ensuring that neighbourhood health and wellbeing initiatives are 

co-produced involving local residents. 

The neighbourhood approach came out of a wide consultation exercise in 

response to the desire of Rochdale Council and health partners to integrate 

services in line with the requirements of both the health and social care act 

2012 and the care act of 2014. The approach relies as much on creating and 

developing relationships with the people and organisations in the ‘place’ as it 

does on the structures and the systems that exist or need to be developed. 

 

4.4.3 Strategic commissioning to link closely with the accommodation 

strategy, homelessness, drugs and alcohol and people with no access 

to public funds (refugees and asylum seekers)  

The adult social care accommodation strategy and accompanying market 

position statement were initially published in May and have been refreshed in 

light of COVID-19 and re-published in September 2020. This highlighted the 

commissioning intentions for people with long-term conditions and additional 

support needs, and who had a formal care act assessment. 

A further piece of work is being undertaken that looks to address 

accommodation needs for people with no formal support need who may need 

low-level, preventative support, and those with multiple disadvantage e.g. 

people who may be homeless, have a drug and alcohol dependency, or have 

no access to public funds (refugees and asylum seekers). 

This will link closely with the Homelessness Review being undertaken 

FutureGov.  It also has clear ties with the cross-cutting piece of work by adult 

social care, public health and the neighbourhood’s directorate that is looking 

to develop a whole operating model for people with this type of needs.   

 

4.4.4 Development of end to end pathways and programme budgets in key 

areas 

The original intent had been to transfer Urgent care into the LCO in April 2020 

and to then transition Planned care in April 2021. The revised intent is to look 

at specific areas to develop a programme budget and outcomes framework to 

support improved services and outcomes for the population of Rochdale. The 

priority areas for this work include Respiratory (including children’s pathways), 

Cardiology, Musculoskeletal and Paediatric Gastroenterology and Allergy 

services. 

 

Page 74



 

 

4.4.5 Development of the urgent care by appointment model in line with GM 

guidance  

The Urgent care by appointment model is due to be implemented in Rochdale 

in October 2020. The model comprises  

 Call before you go – implementation of local systems to support the 
direction of activity away from Accident and Emergency Departments 
where appropriate 

 Pre-Emergency Department triage to support activity flowing to local 
services. 

 The development of the clinical assessment service (CAS) model to 
support the above  

 

4.4.6 Primary care  

In the last 2 quarters of 2020/21 the CCG and LCO will conduct a review of 

the Core Plus scheme and determine the scope of the programme for 

2021/22.  

The development of Primary care networks is key to the development of the 

place-based service offer in Rochdale. In the last 2 quarters of 20/21 the CCG 

will work to review the PCN maturity matrix and work with PCNs to support a 

programme of development into 2021/22. 

 

4.4.7 Consideration of our out of hours offer  

As part of the development of a responsive system offer to support the urgent 

care by appointment model there is an opportunity to review the services 

which are currently commissioned outside the core hours of primary care 

(from 6.30pm – 8am Tuesday – Friday and all weekend). In the remaining 2 

quarters of 20/21 the CCG working with LCO will review the services offered 

outside of core primary care and determine how services will be configured 

from 2021/22 onwards. 

 

4.4.8 Development of our cancer services across primary and secondary care  

The Rapid Diagnostic Centre Model is seen as a positive development for the 

Rochdale system. Previously clinics were held on the Oldham site. These are 

now also held in Rochdale and Salford supporting early identification of 

cancer and also the vague symptoms pathway. The CCG and LCO is 

committed to developing this model further.  A full financial evaluation is 

anticipated to support the development of sustainable model for 2021/22 

onwards. 

 

4.4.9 Further development of our Children’s community services and the links 

with the LCO  

The Children’s and Maternity Programme sits across Health and Care 

Commissioning arrangements. Governance and decision-making straddles 

Page 75



 

 

both Health and Care Senior Management Team and Children’s Service’s 

Senior Leadership Team Compliance and progress against the Children’s and 

Maternity Plan reports to both the Integrated Commissioning Board (for 

decision making) and the Children and Young People’s Partnership (for 

oversight and scrutiny). The Transforming Care, Mental Health, Special 

Educational Needs and Disabilities and Cared for Children’s agendas seek 

assurance that a child and young person will be supported up to the age of 

25. This also means that the Children’s Programme sits across both 

Children’s and Adult’s agendas. Over 2021/22 the Children’s Team will 

support delivery against the plan.  

The priority area for inclusion in the LCO for children is the work on avoidable 

admissions and support for the urgent care agenda. 

 

4.4.10 Reconfiguration of the Learning Disabilities service offer  

We will seek to improve care coordination for the most complex cohort of 

people and avoid hospital admissions. The reconfiguration will look to add a 

social work resource into the LD community health team to work under a 

single line management arrangement with health colleagues specialising in 

challenging behaviour and forensic work. Combined risk management work 

will strengthen support packages around the most complex people enabling 

them to continue to live in their local community. 

 

4.5 Next Steps 

 To further develop and implement an engagement plan to support 
further detailed commissioning intention work 

 Detailed work up of each commissioning intention to determine scope 
and contracting arrangements 

 Agree LCO contract scope and service alignment by end November 
2020 

 
 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5.1 There are no cost implications at this time. 
 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6.1 There are no significant risks at this time. 
 
 

Consultation 

 
7.1 This paper has been written in consultation with senior commissioners. 
 
 
 

Page 76



 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8. None applicable  

 

For Further Information Contact: Sandra Croasdale, 07747 473888, 
scroasdale@nhs.net 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 77



 

 

Appendix 1 – Engagement Presentation 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 78



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 79



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 80



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 81



 

 

Appendix 2 – Demographics 
 
Demographics from the Community Led Conversations 
Community Conversations led by Healthwatch and Action Together engaged with 
various community members, leaders, representatives and the public and a total of 
52 people contributed their thoughts in the discussions. Demographic data for the 
attendees of the Action Together led groups was not collated as attendees gave 
views on behalf of the cohort of people they represent through their organisations; 
however, some demographic detail of the cohort of people they support in their 
organisations was gathered. This combined with the demographic data for the 
Healthwatch led focus groups was gathered and can be found in the matrix below: 
 

Action 
Together Led 
Conversations  

Action Together held conversations to seek feedback on the 

commissioning intentions with the VCFSE organisations that are 

part of the Grassroots Gathering, Real Change and Inclusive 

Messaging sessions. They are members of Action Together and 

have stated the main clients/ users / beneficiaries of their 

organisations via their membership application.  The organisations 

engaged have stated that they support: 

 Black and Minority Ethnic Communities    
  

 Faith communities 

 Families and parents      

 Homeless people 

 Older people (50+)      

 People with a long-term health condition 

 People with learning disabilities    

 People with emotional wellbeing / mental health concerns 

 People with substance misuse/addiction                   

 People looking for employment 

 

Healthwatch 
Rochdale 
Volunteers 

Demographics 
Gender:  50% male 50% female 
Ethnicity: 100% White British 
Age: 35-44 and 55+ 
Health conditions: 50% with a long-term health condition 
Township: 100% Rochdale South  

BAME Covid 
Focus Group 

 Demographics 
Gender: 100% male 
Ethnicity: 100% BAME 
Age: 35-44 and 45 - 54 
Health conditions: 50% with a long-term health condition 
Township: 100% Rochdale North 

Youth 
Parliament 

Demographics 
Gender: 50% female 50% male 
Ethnicity: Representation from BAME and White British 
Age: 13 – 22 years 

Page 82



 

 

HWR 
Advisory 

Group and 
other 

organisations 

Demographics:  
Advisory Group members:  
Gender: 50% female, 50% male 
Ethnicity: 50% BAME, 50% White British 
Ages:  35 – 44 and  55+ 
Health condition: 100% 
Township: 50% Pennines 50% Rochdale North 
The service users they collectively represent include:   

Age: All ages 

Ethnicity: None prescriptive, one has strong links with the BAME 

community 

Disability: Both are strong advocates for inclusion, one offers 

Mental Health support services for male and female 

Carer: Both agencies have links with Carers providing support 

when required. 

Health conditions: Neither organisation excludes on the basis of 

health conditions and pro—actively support as and when required 

Sexual orientation: Both offer an inclusive service irrespective of 

sexual orientation 

Gender: The services are open to all; one service has a support 

strand which caters specifically for women  

Religion: None prescriptive although one has strong links with the 

Muslim community 

 
Demographics from the Survey  

A total of 65 responses to the survey were submitted. Of these respondents:  

 51 (78%) of respondents define themselves as White British; 7 (11%) 

of respondents define themselves as Asian British. 

 Predominately respondents of the survey were aged 55+ (40%); 

nobody under the age of 24 answered the survey. 

 33 (51%) of respondents had a health condition of sorts (long term or 

multiple) 

 Regarding location the majority of respondents reside in Middleton 

Township (15), followed by Rochdale South (14) and Rochdale North (13). 

Both Heywood (5) and Pennines (9) had lower numbers of respondents.  

 
 
 
  

Page 83



 

 

Appendix 3 – Survey Results 
 

Health and Care Priorities in Rochdale  

 

https://consultations.rochdale.gov.uk/research/07fda358 

 

This report was created on Friday 16 October 2020 at 09:40 

The consultation ran from 21/09/2020 to 07/10/2020 

Responses to this survey: 65 

 

1: Do you agree with the priorities? 

 

Do you agree with the priorities for Children and Young People’s Health and 

Care in Rochdale? 

There were 65 responses to this part of the question. 

Option Total Percent 

Yes 58 89.23% 

No 7 10.77% 

Not Answered 0 0.00% 

 

Do you agree with the priorities for Adults Health and Care in Rochdale? 

There were 65 responses to this part of the question. 

Option Total Percent 

Yes 61 93.85% 

No 4 6.15% 

Not Answered 0 0.00% 

 

Do you agree with the priorities for Covid-19 Services in Rochdale? 

There were 65 responses to this part of the question. 

Option Total Percent 

Yes 60 92.31% 

No 5 7.69% 

Not Answered 0 0.00% 

 

2: Why do you agree or disagree with the priorities? 

 

Please comment below: 

Page 84



 

 

There were 44 responses to this part of the question. 

 

3: Are there other areas of Health and Care that are important to you? 

 

Please comment below: 

There were 44 responses to this part of the question. 

 

4: Would you like to engage with us further regarding the priorities? 

 

Please select an option: 

There were 60 responses to this part of the question. 

Option Total Percent 

Yes 25 38.46% 

No 35 53.85% 

Not Answered 5 7.69% 

 

Name: 

There were 22 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Address: 

There were 22 responses to this part of the question. 

 

Postcode 

There were 17 responses to this part of the question. 

 

5: What is your age? 

 

Please select 

There were 64 responses to this part of the question. 

Option Total Percent 

Under 18 0 0.00% 

18-24 0 0.00% 

25-34 3 4.62% 

35-44 12 18.46% 

45-54 23 35.38% 

Page 85



 

 

55+ 26 40.00% 

Prefer not to say 0 0.00% 

Not Answered 1 1.54% 

 

6: What is your ethnicity 

 

Please select 

There were 63 responses to this part of the question. 

Option Total Percent 

African 0 0.00% 

Arab 0 0.00% 

Asian British 7 10.77% 

Bangladeshi 0 0.00% 

Black British 0 0.00% 

Carribean 0 0.00% 

Gypsey or Irish Traveller 0 0.00% 

Indian 0 0.00% 

White British 51 78.46% 

Any other white background 2 3.08% 

Any other mixed background 0 0.00% 

Other 1 1.54% 

Prefer not to say 2 3.08% 

Not Answered 2 3.08% 

 

7: Do you consider yourself to have a disability? 

 

Please select 

There were 64 responses to this part of the question. 

Option Total Percent 

Yes 15 23.08% 

No 48 73.85% 

I'd prefer not to say 1 1.54% 

Not Answered 1 1.54% 

 

8: Are you a carer? 

 

Please select 

There were 63 responses to this part of the question. 

Option Total Percent 

Page 86



 

 

Yes 14 21.54% 

No 47 72.31% 

Prefer not to say 2 3.08% 

Not Answered 2 3.08% 

 

9: Do you have any health conditions? 

 

Please select 

There were 63 responses to this part of the question. 

Option Total Percent 

A long term condition 24 36.92% 

Multiple conditions 9 13.85% 

Neither 28 43.08% 

Prefer not to say 5 7.69% 

Not Answered 2 3.08% 

 

10: Which of the following best describes you? 

 

Please select 

There were 62 responses to this part of the question. 

Option Total Percent 

Heterosexual 56 86.15% 

Gay or lesbian 1 1.54% 

Bisexual 0 0.00% 

Asexual 0 0.00% 

Pansexual 0 0.00% 

Other 0 0.00% 

Prefer not to say 5 7.69% 

Not Answered 3 4.62% 

 

11: What is your gender? 

 

Please select 

There were 62 responses to this part of the question. 

Option Total Percent 

Male 12 18.46% 

Female 46 70.77% 

Other 0 0.00% 

Prefer not to say 4 6.15% 

Page 87



 

 

Not Answered 3 4.62% 

 

12: What is your religion? 

 

Please select 

There were 63 responses to this part of the question. 

Option Total Percent 

Buddhist 0 0.00% 

Christian 39 60.00% 

Hindu 0 0.00% 

Jewish 1 1.54% 

Muslim 7 10.77% 

Sikh 0 0.00% 

Other 1 1.54% 

No religion 11 16.92% 

I'd prefer not to say 4 6.15% 

Not Answered 2 3.08% 

 

13: What is your postcode? 

 

Postcode: 

There were 59 responses to this part of the question. 

 

 

Page 88



Document is Restricted

Page 89

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 96

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 111

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 145

Agenda Item 16
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 158

Agenda Item 17
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 162

Agenda Item 18
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 169

Agenda Item 19
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Terms of Reference Review
	ICB TOR Oct 2020
	FPR ToR - Oct 20 v4

	8 Presentation - Pennine Acute Transactions
	HMR PAT Transaction Presentation v3

	9 Better Care Fund Budget Monitoring Quarter 2 2020/21
	Better Care Fund Budget Monitoring Quarter 2 2020/21 enc. 1

	10 Health and Social Care Pooled Budget Monitoring  Report September 2020
	11 Health Commissioning Intentions
	Health and Care Priorities in Rochdale
	1: Do you agree with the priorities?
	2: Why do you agree or disagree with the priorities?
	3: Are there other areas of Health and Care that are important to you?
	4: Would you like to engage with us further regarding the priorities?
	5: What is your age?
	6: What is your ethnicity
	7: Do you consider yourself to have a disability?
	8: Are you a carer?
	9: Do you have any health conditions?
	10: Which of the following best describes you?
	11: What is your gender?
	12: What is your religion?
	13: What is your postcode?


	13 Public Health Commissioning Intentions 2021/22
	14 Contract Intentions for Health and Children's social care
	15 Commissioning Intentions for Health and Children's social care
	16 Adult Care Commissioning Plan 2021/22
	17 Adult Social Care Fees 2021/22 – Options for Consultation
	18 Financial Assessment (DLA) Review
	19 The Learning Disability & Autism Plan

